Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer

*

STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk

*

MEETING LOCATION
Commissioners Conference Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214

*

MEETING TIMES
1% Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.

*

COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex
Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: (770) 305-5200
Fax: (770) 305-5210

*

WEB SITE
www.fayettecountyga.gov

*

E-MAIL
administration@fayettecountyga.gov

Werksteot #4genda

Board of Commissioners
July 2, 2008
3:30 P.M.

Call to Order by Chairman.

Acceptance of Agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA:

OLD BUSINESS:

A

Approval of staff's recommendation to accept the annual service
agreement between Motorola and Fayette County for the County’s
800 MHz ASTRO Simulcast System Maintenance and for a
contract renewal for a term July 1, 208 through June 30, 2008 in
the amount of $450,358.08. The original contract was approved
with the implementation of the Simulcast System.

Consideration of the revised Metropolitan North Georgia Water
Planning District's (MNGWPD) model Floodplain Management
Ordinance to replace the existing Article IV Floodplain Regulations
of the Fayette County Development Regulations. This item was
last discussed during the Workshop Meeting held on August 1,
2007.

Consideration of the proposed amendments to the Land Use
Element of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan regarding the
S.R. 54 West Overlay District as presented by the Planning and
Zoning Department. This item was tabled during the June 26,
2008 meeting.

Discussion of recommendations for golf cart usage on County
streets as presented by Planning and Zoning, Public Works, and
the Sheriff's Office. This item was last discussed during the Board
of Commissioners’ Retreat held in November 2007.





Workshop Agenda

July 2, 2008

Page 2

NEW BUSINESS:

E. Consideration of staff's recommendations for changes to the “suggested planting materials” listed
in Article V, Buffer and Landscape Requirements, of the Fayette County Development
Regulations.

F. Consideration of staff's request that the current Alcoholic Beverage Application document and

Personnel Statement document be revised.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS

BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT






Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’911 Communications Department Head: ’Cheryl Rogers

Presenter, if needed: ’Cheryl Rogers Preferred Meeting Date: ’Wednesday,JuIy 2,2008

Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of staff's recommendation to accept the annual service agreement between Motorola and Fayette County for the County's
800 MHz ASTRO Simulcast System Maintenance and for a contract renewal for a term of July 1, 2008 thru June 30, 2009, in the
amount of $450,358.08. The original contract was approved with the implementation of the Simulcast System.

Background/History/Details:

This annual service agreement and contract renewal provides for the ongoing maintenance of the Fayette County, Georgia 800 MHz
ASTRO Simulcast System. This expense breaks down as follows: 4.1 System Maintenance=$390,860.88, UPS Maintenance=
$20,680.32, ITAC Maintenance=5$7,712.68 and MOSCAD/Sirens Maintenance=5$12,610.08 and PLANT (telephones)=$18,493.80 for a
total of $450,358.08. These total reflects a $23,682.00 prepay discount ($474,040.48 - $23,682.40 = $450,358.08). Motorola is the
proprietary source of these services due to the nature of the equipment. The original contract was approved with the
implementation of the Simulcast System, this contract renewal identifies the costs for the 2008-2009 term.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of the Board of Commissioners for payment of the Motorola annual service agreement in the amount of $450,358.08 and
contract renewal for term July 1, 2008 thru June 30, 2009.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

This expense (funding) is provided for in the 2008-2009 Communications M & O budget.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date |Wednesday, July 2, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New

Presentation Hearing ® Business C Business ( Consent ( Report ( Other





		911 Communications- Motorola Agreement Agenda Request File.pdf

		911 Communications- Motorola Agreement Backup

		0250_001.pdf

		0250_008

		0250_015










Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Engineering Department Head: ’Phil Mallon

Presenter, if needed: ’Vanessa Birrell Preferred Meeting Date: ’Wednesday,JuIy 2,2008

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of the revised Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District's (MNGWPD) model Floodplain Management
Ordinance to replace existing Article IV Floodplain Regulations of the Fayette County Development Regulations.

Background/History/Details:

The MNGWPD requires local governments to manage floodplain using expected future land-use conditions. The model ordinance
provided by the MNGWPD has been reviewed and modified by county staff since the project was first presented to the Board in
August 2007. Input from the Planning Commission, local developers and design professionals was incorporated into the revised
document.

The proposed ordinance requires the County to determine future floodplain. Money for this effort has been allocated as a Capital
Improvement Project (CIP). Engineering is currently working on a request for proposal (RFP) and plans to make a recommendation
to the Board in August.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval to present the proposed Floodplain Management Ordinance to the Planning Commission at their August Public Meeting.
Once approved by the Planning Commission the ordinance will be presented to the Board of Commissioners at a Public Meeting for
discussion and/or adoption.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Funding is required to prepare the future-condition floodplain maps. Six hundred and thirty thousand dollars ($630,000) has been
allocated as a Capital Improvement Project for this work ($76,000 from previous years, $274,000 in FY 2009 and $280,000 in FY
2010).

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |August 1, 2007

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date |Wednesday, July 2, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New

Presentation Hearing ® Business C Business ( Consent ( Report ( Other





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Overview — not to be included with ordinance

The purpose of this ordinance is to completely replace existing Article IV, Flood Plain
Regulations of Fayette County’s Development Regulations.

Floodplain management involves the designation of flood-prone areas and the managing
of their uses. It is also aimed at minimizing modifications to streams, reducing flood
hazards, and protecting the beneficial uses of the floodplain such as water quality
protection. As such, floodplain management can be seen as a subset of the larger
consideration of surface water and stormwater management.

Floodplain regulations and development restrictions can greatly reduce future flooding
impacts, preserve greenspace and habitat, and protect their function in safely conveying
floodwaters and protecting water quality. This model ordinance aims to help
communities integrate floodplain management with stormwater management during the
land development process.

The ordinance requires that a local government regulate the floodplains that will be
expected with future land-use conditions, which are based upon the communities adopted
future land use map, zoning, or watershed study projections. The ordinance also requires
the local government to regulate floodplains on all streams with a drainage area of 100
acres and greater.

In order to administer the ordinance, “future-conditions” floodplains must be established:

e Future-conditions floodplains for streams with a drainage area of one square mile
(640 acres) and greater in size are to be delineated by the local jurisdiction. As
required in the District-wide Watershed Management Plan, cities and counties
are expected to model and map at least 10% of their area each year until future-
conditions floodplains have been established for the entire community.

e For streams with a drainage area between 100 acres and 640 acres, the local
jurisdiction shall model and map the future-conditions floodplains -or- require
the future-conditions floodplains be determined on a per development basis by
the applicant.

e For development projects in watersheds of any size where future-conditions
floodplains have not yet been established, the applicant will be required to
determine the future-conditions floodplain boundaries located on their property.

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 1 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Article IV: Floodplain Management

Table of Contents

Section 1 General Provisions

Section 2 Definitions

Section 3 Permit Procedures and Requirements
Section 4 Standards for Development

Section 5 Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction
Section 6 Variance Procedures

Section 7 Violations, Enforcement and Penalties

Introduction

It is hereby determined that:

The flood hazard areas of Fayette County are subject to periodic inundation which may
result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and
governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood relief and protection,
and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and
general welfare.

Flood hazard areas can serve important stormwater management, water quality,
streambank protection, stream corridor protection, wetland preservation and ecological
purposes when permanently protected as undisturbed or minimally disturbed areas.

Effective floodplain management and flood hazard protection activities can (1) Protect
human life and health; (2) Minimize damage to private property; (3) Minimize damage to
public facilities and infrastructure such as water and gas mains, electric, telephone and
sewer lines, streets and bridges located in floodplains; and (4) Minimize expenditure of
public money for costly flood control projects associated with flooding and generally
undertaken at the expense of the general public.

Article IX, Section Il of the Constitution of the State of Georgia and Section 36-1-20(a)
of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated have delegated the responsibility to local
governmental units to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety,
and general welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, Fayette County, Georgia, does ordain this
ordinance and establishes this set of floodplain management and flood hazard reduction
policies for the purpose of regulating the use of flood hazard areas. It is determined that
the regulation of flood hazard areas and the prevention of flood damage are in the public
interest and will minimize threats to public health and safety, as well as to private and
public property.

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 2 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Section 1. General Provisions

1.1.  Purpose and Intent

The purpose of this ordinance is to protect, maintain and enhance the public health,
safety, environment and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to
flood conditions in flood hazard areas, as well as to protect the beneficial uses of
floodplain areas for water quality protection, streambank and stream corridor protection,
wetlands preservation and ecological and environmental protection by provisions
designed to:

1) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such uses,
be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

(2 Restrict or prohibit uses which are dangerous to health, safety and property due to
flooding or erosion hazards, or which increase flood heights, velocities, or
erosion;

3) Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase
flood damage or erosion;

4) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert
flood waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands;

(5) Limit the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective
barriers which are involved in the accommodation of flood waters; and,

(6) Protect the stormwater management, water quality, streambank protection, stream
corridor protection, wetland preservation and ecological functions of natural
floodplain areas.

1.2.  Applicability

This ordinance shall be applicable to all areas of Areas of Special Flood Hazard within
Fayette County and all areas “adjacent” to an Area of special Flood Hazard, as defined
herein. A property shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this ordinance when
whenever a building permit, land disturbance permit, certificate of zoning compliance,
subdivision, or reconfiguration of a parcel is required and/or approved by the county.
The conditions of this ordinance shall supersede floodplain constraints depicted on final
plats, construction drawings, surveys, etc. The effective date of this ordinance is
October 1, 2008.

1.3.  Designation of Ordinance Administrator

The County Engineer is hereby appointed to administer and implement the provisions of
this ordinance.

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 3 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

1.4.  Basis for Area of Special Flood Hazard — Flood Area Maps and Studies
For the purposes of this ordinance, the following are adopted by reference:

1) The most recent Flood Insurance Study (FIS) on file with the Fayette County
Engineering Department with accompanying maps and other supporting data and
any revision thereto are hereby adopted by reference.

(2 Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the base flood
elevation or delineation of the 100-year floodplain and flood-prone areas include:

@) Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army
Corps of Engineers, the United States Geological Survey or any other
local, State or Federal agency applicable to Fayette County; or

(b) Any base flood study authored by a registered professional engineer in the
State of Georgia which has been prepared by FEMA approved
methodology and approved by the Fayette County Engineering
Department.

3 Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the future-
conditions flood elevation or delineation of the future-conditions floodplain and
flood-prone areas include:

@) Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army
Corps of Engineers, the United States Geological Survey, or any other
local, State or Federal agency applicable to Fayette County; or

(b) Any future-conditions flood study that is: 1) authored by a registered
professional engineer in the State of Georgia; 2) prepared using FEMA
approved methodology; and 3) approved by the Fayette County
Engineering Department.

4) The repository for public inspection of the FIS, accompanying maps and other
supporting data is located at the Fayette County Engineering Department.

1.5.  Compatibility with Other Regulations

This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other ordinance, rule, regulation,
statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law. The requirements
of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule,
regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes
restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other
provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or impose higher protective
standards for human health or the environment shall control.

1.6.  Severability

If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this
ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 4 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph,
subdivision or clause of this ordinance.

1.7. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for
regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger
floods can and will occur; flood heights may be increased by manmade or natural causes.
This ordinance does not imply that land outside the Areas of Special Flood Hazard or
uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This
ordinance shall not create liability on the part of Fayette County or by any officer or
employee thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this ordinance or any
administrative decision lawfully made there under.

Section 2. Definitions

""Addition (to an existing building)" means any walled and roofed expansion to the
perimeter of a building in which the addition is connected by a common load-bearing
wall other than a fire wall. Any walled and roofed addition which is connected by a fire
wall or is separated by an independent perimeter load-bearing wall shall be considered
New Construction.

"Appeal' means a request for a review of the County Engineer's interpretation of any
provision of this ordinance.

"Area of Shallow Flooding® means a designated AO or AH Zone on a community's
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with base flood depths from one to three feet, and/or
where a clearly-defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is
unpredictable and indeterminate, and where velocity flow may be evident.

"Area of Special Flood Hazard" is the land subject to a one percent or greater chance
of flooding in any given year. This includes all floodplain and flood prone areas at or
below the base flood elevation (including A, A1-30, A-99, AE, AO, AH, and AR on the
FHBM or the FIRM), all floodplain and flood prone areas at or below the future-
conditions flood elevation, and all other flood prone areas as referenced in Section 1.4.
""Base Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded
in any given year, also known as the 100-year flood.

""Base Flood Elevation' means the highest water surface elevation anticipated at any
given point during the base flood.

""Basement' means that portion of a building having its floor subgrade (i.e., below
ground level) on more than one side.

""Building™ means any structure built for support, shelter, or enclosure for any occupancy
or storage.

“County Engineer” means the person so appointed by the Fayette County Board of
Commissioners and his/her employees designated to enforce and interpret this article. If
not designated otherwise, the County Engineer is the Director of Engineering.
"Development' means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling,

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 5 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

clearing, grubbing, grading, paving, any other installation of impervious cover,
excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.
"Elevated Building' means a non-basement building built to have the lowest floor of
the lowest enclosed area elevated above the ground level by means of fill, solid
foundation perimeter walls, pilings, columns, piers, or shear walls adequately anchored
S0 as not to impair the structural integrity of the building during a base flood event.
"Existing Construction' Any structure for which the "start of construction” commenced
before 23 June 1983 (this is the date of Fayette County’s original floodplain management
regulation).
"Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision™ means a manufactured home
park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which
the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum the installation of
utilities, the construction of streets, and final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads)
is completed before 23 June 1983 (the date of Fayette County’s original floodplain
management regulation).
"Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision® means the
preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on
which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including the installation of utilities, the
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.
"FEMA™ means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
"Flood™ or ""Flooding" means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete
inundation of normally dry land areas from:

(a) the overflow of inland waters; or

(b) the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any

source.
"Flood Hazard Boundary Map* or ""FHBM" means an official map of a community,
issued by the Federal Insurance Administration, where the boundaries of areas of special
flood hazard have been defined as Zone A.
"Flood Insurance Rate Map' or ""FIRM" means an official map of a community,
issued by the Federal Insurance Administration, delineating the areas of special flood
hazard and/or risk premium zones applicable to the community.
"Flood Insurance Study™ or ""FIS" means the official report by the Federal Insurance
Administration evaluating flood hazards and containing flood profiles and water surface
elevations of the base flood.
"Floodplain'™ means any land area susceptible to flooding during the base flood.
"Floodproofing' means any combination of structural and non-structural additions,
changes, or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real
estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their
contents.
"Floodway" or ""Regulatory Floodway"* means the channel of a stream or other
watercourse and the adjacent areas of the floodplain which is necessary to contain and
discharge the base flood flow without cumulatively increasing the base flood elevation
more than one foot.
"Functionally Dependent Use™ means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose
unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water.

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 6 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

"Future-conditions Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being
equaled or exceeded in any given year based on future-conditions hydrology. Also
known as the 100-year future-conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Flood Elevation™ means the flood standard equal to or higher than
the Base Flood Elevation. The Future-conditions Flood Elevation is defined as the
highest water surface anticipated at any given point during the future-conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Floodplain'™ means any land area susceptible to flooding by the
future-conditions flood.
""Future-conditions Hydrology' means the flood discharges associated with projected
land-use conditions based on a community’s zoning map, comprehensive land-use plans,
and/or watershed study projections, and without consideration of projected future
construction of flood detention structures or projected future hydraulic modifications
within a stream or other waterway, such as bridge and culvert construction, fill, and
excavation.
""Highest Adjacent Grade' means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface,
prior to construction, adjacent to the proposed foundation of a building.
"Historic Structure™ means any structure that is;
(a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing
maintained by the U.S. Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the
Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the
National Register;
(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a
district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered
historic district;
(c) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places and determined as
eligible by states with historic preservation programs which have been approved
by the Secretary of the Interior; or
(d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places and determined as
eligible by communities with historic preservation programs that have been
certified either:
1. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the
Interior, or
2. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved
programs.
""Lowest Floor' means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including basement.
An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, used solely for parking of vehicles, building
access, or storage, in an area other than a basement, is not considered a building's lowest
floor, provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of
other provisions of this ordinance.
""Manufactured Home™ means a building, transportable in one or more sections, built
on a permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation
when connected to the required utilities. The term includes any structure commonly
referred to as a “mobile home” regardless of the date of manufacture. The term also

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 7 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

includes parked trailers, travel trailers and similar transportable structures placed on a site
for 180 consecutive days or longer and intended to be improved property.

""Mean Sea Level" means the average height of the sea for all stages of the tide. It is
used as a reference for establishing various elevations within the floodplain. For
purposes of this ordinance the term is synonymous with National Geodetic Vertical

Datum (NGVD) and/or the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988.

""National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD)" as corrected in 1929 is a vertical control
used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

""New Construction' means any structure (see definition) for which the “start of
construction” commenced after June 23, 1983, and includes any subsequent
improvements to the structure.

""New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision' means a manufactured home park
or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the
manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of
utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete
pads) is completed on or after June 23, 1983.

"North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988" is a vertical control used as a
reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

""Owner" means the legal or beneficial owner of a site, including but not limited to, a
mortgagee or vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person,
firm or corporation in control of the site.

"Permit™ means the Certificate of Zoning Compliance issued by Fayette County to the
applicant which is required prior to undertaking any development activity.
""Recreational Vehicle™ means a vehicle which is:

(a) built on a single chassis;

(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;

(c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by light duty truck; and,
(d) designed primarily for use as temporary living quarters for recreational,
camping, travel, or seasonal use and not for use as a permanent dwelling.

"'Site" means the parcel of land being developed, or the portion thereof on which the
development project is located.

"*Start of Construction™ means the date the permit was issued, provided the actual start
of construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within 180 days of the permit
date. The actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of the structure
such as the pouring of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or
any work beyond the stage of excavation, and includes the placement of a manufactured
home on a foundation. A minimum of one inspection approval must be obtained as
evidence that work was commenced or that work has continued. Permanent construction
does not include initial land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it
include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a
basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it
include the installation on the property of buildings appurtenant to the permitted
structure, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or part of the main
structure. (NOTE: accessory structures are not exempt from any ordinance requirements).
For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 8 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that
alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

""Structure’ means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground, a
manufactured home, a gas or liquid storage tank.

""Subdivision' means the division of a tract or parcel of land resulting in one or more
new lots or building sites for the purpose, whether immediately or in the future, of sale,
other transfer of ownership or land development, and includes divisions of land resulting
from or made in connection with the layout or development of a new street or roadway or
a change in an existing street or roadway.

""Substantial Damage' means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby
the cost of restoring the structure to its before-damaged-condition would equal or exceed
50 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.
""Substantial Improvement' means any combination of permitted repairs,
reconstruction, alteration, or improvements to a building, taking place during a 10-year
period, in which the cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of
the structure prior to the improvement. The market value of the building means (1) the
appraised value of the structure as determined by the Fayette County Tax Assessor prior
to the start of the initial repair or improvement, or (2) in the case of damage, the value of
the structure prior to the damage occurring. This term includes structures which have
incurred "substantial damage™ regardless of the actual amount of repair work performed.
For the purposes of this definition, "substantial improvement™ is considered to occur
when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor system, or other structural part of the
building commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the
building. The term does not, however, include those improvements of a building required
to comply with existing health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which are solely
necessary to assure safe living conditions, which have been pre-identified by the Code
Enforcement Official, and not solely triggered by an improvement or repair project.
""Substantially Improved Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision™ is
where the repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and
pads equals or exceeds 50 percent of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before the
repair, reconstruction or improvement commenced.

""Variance" is a grant of relief from the requirements of this ordinance which permits
construction in a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance.

"Violation™ means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant
with the community’s floodplain management regulations. A structure or other
development without the elevation certificate, other certificates, or other evidence of
compliance required in this ordinance is presumed to be in violation until such time as
that documentation is provided.

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 9 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements

3.1.  Permit Application Requirements

No owner or developer shall perform any development activities on a site without first
meeting the applicable requirements of this ordinance prior to commencing the proposed
activity.

Unless specifically excluded by this ordinance, any landowner or developer desiring a
permit for a development activity shall submit to the Fayette County Engineering
Department documentation showing compliance with this ordinance.

No permit will be approved for any development activities that do not meet the
requirements, restrictions and criteria of this ordinance.

3.2.  Floodplain Management Plan Requirements

A Floodplain Management Plan shall be required for all projects with development
activities within, either partially or completely, an Area of Special Flood Hazard. The
plan shall include the following items:

1) Site plan drawn to scale, which includes but is not limited to:

€)) Existing and proposed elevations of the area in question and the nature,
location and dimensions of existing and/or proposed structures, earthen fill
placement, amount and location of excavation material, and storage of
materials or equipment;

(b) For all proposed structures, spot ground elevations at building corners and
20-foot or smaller intervals along the foundation footprint, or one foot
contour elevations throughout the building site;

(c) Proposed locations of water supply, sanitary sewer, and utilities;

(d) Proposed locations of drainage and stormwater management facilities;

(e) Proposed grading plan;

()] Base flood elevations and future-conditions flood elevations;

(9) Boundaries of the base flood floodplain and future-conditions floodplain;

(h) If applicable, the location of the floodway; and

Q) Certification of the above by a registered professional engineer or
surveyor.

(2) Building and foundation design detail, including but not limited to:

@) Elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent grade) of the
lowest floor, including basement, of all proposed structures;

(b) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential
structure will be floodproofed,

(c) Certification that any proposed non-residential floodproofed structure
meets the criteria in Section 5.2(2);

(d) For enclosures below the base flood elevation, location and total net area
of foundation openings are required in Section 5.1 (5).

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 10 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

(e) Design plans certified by a registered professional engineer or architect for
all proposed structure(s).

3) Description, based on engineering calculations or modeling, of the extent to
which any watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed
development;

4) Hard copies and digital files of computer models, if any, copies of work maps,
comparison of pre-and post development conditions base flood elevations, future-
conditions flood elevations, flood protection elevations, Special Flood Hazard
Areas and regulatory floodway widths, flood profiles and all other computations
and other information similar to that presented in the FIS;

(5) Copies of all applicable State and Federal permits necessary for proposed
development; and

(6) All appropriate certifications required under this ordinance.

The approved Floodplain Management Plan shall contain certification by the applicant
that all development activities will be done according to the plan or previously approved
revisions. Any and all development permits and/or use and occupancy certificates or
permits may be revoked at any time if the construction and development activities are not
in strict accordance with approved plans.

3.3.  Construction Stage Submittal Requirements

For all new construction and substantial improvements on sites with a Floodplain
Management Plan, the permit holder shall provide to Fayette County Engineering
Department a certified as-built Elevation Certificate or Floodproofing Certificate for non-
residential construction including the lowest floor elevation or flood-proofing level
immediately after the lowest floor or flood-proofing is completed. A final Elevation
Certificate shall be provided after completion of construction including final grading of
the site. Any lowest floor certification made relative to mean sea level shall be prepared
by or under the direct supervision of a registered land surveyor or professional engineer
and certified by the same. When floodproofing is utilized for non-residential structures,
said certification shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional
engineer or architect and certified by the same.

Any work undertaken prior to approval of these certifications shall be at the permit
holder's risk. The Fayette County Engineering Department shall review the above
referenced certification data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be
corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior to further work being allowed to
proceed. Failure to submit certification or failure to make the corrections required hereby
shall be cause to issue a stop work order for the project.

3.4.  Duties and Responsibilities of the Administrator

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 11 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Duties of the Fayette County Engineering Department shall include, but shall not be
limited to:

1)

(2)

©)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Review all development applications and permits to assure that the requirements
of this ordinance have been satisfied and to determine whether proposed building
sites will be reasonably safe from flooding;

Require that copies of all necessary permits from governmental agencies from
which approval is required by Federal or state law, including but not limited to
Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972,
No. 33 U.S.C. 1334, be provided and maintained on file;

When Base Flood Elevation data or floodway data have not been provided, then
the Fayette County Engineering Department shall require the applicant to obtain,
review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation and floodway data
available from a Federal, state or other sources in order to meet the provisions of
Sections 4 and 5;

Review and record the actual elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest
adjacent grade) of the lowest floor, including basement, of all new or substantially
improved structures;

Review and record the actual elevation, in relation to mean sea level to which any
substantially improved structures have been flood-proofed,;

When floodproofing is utilized for a non-residential structure, the
owner/developer shall provide to the Fayette County Engineering Department
certification of design criteria from a registered professional engineer or architect;

Notify affected adjacent communities and the Georgia Department of Natural
Resources prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit
evidence of such notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA);

Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Areas
of Special Flood Hazard (e.g., where there appears to be a conflict between a
mapped boundary and actual field conditions) the Fayette County Engineer shall
make the necessary interpretation. Any person contesting the location of the
boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as
provided in this ordinance. Where floodplain elevations have been defined, the
floodplain shall be determined based on flood elevations rather than the area
graphically delineated on the floodplain maps; and,

All records pertaining to the provisions of this ordinance shall be maintained by
Fayette County and shall be open for public inspection.

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 12 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Section 4. Standards for Development

4.1.
(1)

(2)

©)

(4)

4.2.

Definition of Floodplain Boundaries and Areas of Special Flood Hazard
Studied “A” zones, as identified in the FIS, shall be used to establish base flood
elevations whenever available.

For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the future-conditions
flood elevations shall be provided by Fayette County Engineering Department. If
future-conditions elevation data is not available from the Fayette County
Engineering Department, then it shall be determined by a registered professional
engineer using a method approved by FEMA and the Fayette County Engineering
Department.

For streams or other drainage basins with drainage areas less that 100 acres, Areas
of Special Flood Hazard shall be determined by a registered professional engineer
using a method approved by the Fayette County Engineering Department, as
required by the County Engineer.

The Area of Special Flood Hazard shall be delineated for all man-made flood
hazards (e.g., yard drains, stormwater management structures, inlets to storm
sewer systems, etc.) by a registered professional Engineer.

Definition of Floodway Boundaries

The width of a floodway shall be determined from the FIS or a FEMA approved flood
study. For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the regulatory
floodway shall be provided by the Fayette County Engineering Department. If floodway
data is not available from the Fayette County Engineering Department, then it shall be
determined by a registered professional engineer using a method approved by FEMA and
Fayette County.

4.3.
(1)

()

General Standards
No development shall be allowed within the future-conditions floodplain that
could result in any of the following:

@ Raising the base flood elevation or future-conditions flood elevation equal
to or more than 0.01 foot;

(b) Reducing the base flood or future-conditions flood storage capacity;

(c) Changing the flow characteristics as to the depth and velocity of the
waters of the base flood or future-conditions flood as they pass both the
upstream and the downstream boundaries of the development area; or,

(d) Creating hazardous or erosion-producing velocities, or resulting in
excessive sedimentation.

Any development within the future-conditions floodplain allowed under (1) above
shall also meet the following conditions:

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 13 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

@ Acceptable means of providing required compensation include lowering of
natural ground elevations within the floodplain, or lowe4ring of adjoining
land areas to create additional floodplain storage. In no case shall any
required compensation be provided via bottom storage or by excavating
below the elevation of the top of the natural (pre-development) stream
channel unless such excavation results from the widening or relocation of
the stream channel;

(b) Cut areas shall be stabilized and graded to a slope of no less than 2.0
percent;

(c) Effective transitions shall be provided such that flow velocities occurring
on both upstream and downstream properties are not increased or
decreased,;

(d) Verification of no-rise conditions (0.01 foot or less), flood storage
volumes, and flow characteristics shall be provided via a step-backwater
analysis meeting the requirements of Section 4.4;

(e) Public utilities and facilities, such as water, sanitary sewer, gas, and
electrical systems, shall be located and constructed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration or contamination from flood waters; and

()] Any significant physical changes to the base flood floodplain shall be
submitted as a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) or
Conditional Letter of Map Amendment (CLOMA), whichever is
applicable. The CLOMR submittal shall be subject to approval by the
Fayette County Engineering Department using the Community Consent
forms before forwarding the submittal package to FEMA for final
approval. The responsibility for forwarding the CLOMR to FEMA and
for obtaining the CLOMR approval shall be the responsibility of the
applicant. Within six months of the completion of construction, the
applicant shall submit as-built surveys for a final Letter of Map Revision
(LOMR).

4.4. Engineering Study Requirements for Floodplain Encroachments

An engineering study is required, as appropriate to the proposed development activities
on the site, whenever a development proposes to disturb any land within the future-
conditions floodplain, except for a residential single-lot development on streams without
established base flood elevations and/or floodways for which the provisions of Section
5.4 apply. This study shall be prepared by a currently registered Professional Engineer in
the State of Georgia and made a part of the application for a permit. This information
shall be submitted to and approved by the Fayette County Engineering Department prior
to the approval of any permit which would authorize the disturbance of land located
within the future-conditions floodplain. Such study shall include:

1) Description of the extent to which any watercourse or floodplain will be altered or
relocated as a result of the proposed development;

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 14 of 26





()

(3)

(4)

4.5

Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Step-backwater analysis, using a FEMA-approved methodology approved by the
Fayette County Engineering Department. Cross-sections and flow information
shall be obtained whenever available and supplemented by the applicant as
required by the Engineering Department. Computations will be shown
duplicating FIS results and will then be rerun with the proposed modifications to
determine the new base flood profiles, and future-conditions flood profiles;

Floodplain storage calculations based on cross-sections (at least one every 100
feet) showing existing and proposed floodplain conditions to show that base flood
floodplain and future-conditions floodplain storage capacity would not be
diminished by the development;

The study shall include a preliminary plat, grading plan, or site plan, as
appropriate, which shall clearly define all future-conditions floodplain
encroachments.

Floodway Encroachments

Located within Areas of Special Flood Hazard are areas designated as floodway. A
floodway may be an extremely hazardous area due to velocity flood waters, debris or
erosion potential. In addition, floodways must remain free of encroachment in order to
allow for the discharge of the base flood without increased flood heights. Therefore the
following provisions shall apply:

1)

()

(3)

4.6.

Encroachments are prohibited, including earthen fill, new construction,
substantial improvements or other development within the regulatory floodway,
except for activities specifically allowed in (2) below.

Encroachments for bridges, culverts, roadways and utilities within the regulatory
floodway may be permitted provided it is demonstrated through hydrologic and
hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice
that the encroachment shall not result in any increase to the pre-project base flood
elevations, floodway elevations, or floodway widths during the base flood
discharge. A registered professional engineer must provide supporting technical
data and certification thereof; and,

If the applicant proposes to revise the floodway boundaries, no permit authorizing
the encroachment into or an alteration of the floodway shall be issued by the
Fayette County Engineering Department until an affirmative Conditional Letter of
Map Revision (CLOMR) is issued by FEMA and no-rise certification is approved
by the Fayette County Engineering Department.

Maintenance Requirements

The property owner shall be responsible for continuing maintenance as may be needed
within an altered or relocated portion of a floodplain on his property so that the flood-
carrying or flood storage capacity is not diminished. The Fayette County Engineering

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 15 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Department may direct the property owner (at no cost to Fayette County) to restore the
flood-carrying or flood storage capacity of the floodplain if the owner has not performed
maintenance as required by the approved floodplain management plan on file with the
Fayette County Engineering Department.

Section 5. Provisions for Flood Damage Reduction

5.1.

General Standards

In all Areas of Special Flood Hazard the following provisions apply:

1)

(2)

©)

(4)

()

New construction of principal buildings (residential or non-residential), including
manufactured homes, shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-
conditions floodplain, unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have
been met;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be
anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be
constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be
constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage;

Elevated Buildings - All new construction and substantial improvements of
existing structures that include any fully enclosed area located below the lowest
floor formed by foundation and other exterior walls shall be designed so as to be
an unfinished and flood resistant enclosure. The enclosure shall be designed to
equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the automatic
entry and exit of floodwater.

@ Designs for complying with this requirement must either be certified by a

professional engineer or architect or meet the following minimum criteria:

Q) Provide a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not
less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area
subject to flooding;

(i) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above
grade; and,

(iii)  Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other
coverings or devices provided they permit the automatic flow of
floodwater in both directions.

(b) So as not to violate the "Lowest Floor" criteria of this ordinance, the
unfinished and flood resistant enclosure shall solely be used for parking of

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 16 of 26





(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

5.2.

Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

vehicles, limited storage of maintenance equipment used in connection
with the premises, or entry to the elevated area; and,

(c) The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be partitioned or
finished into separate rooms.

All heating and air conditioning equipment and components (including ductwork),
all electrical, ventilation, plumbing, and other service facilities shall be designed
and/or located three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above
the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher, so as to prevent water
from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of
flooding;

Manufactured homes shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral
movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of over-
the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. This standard shall be in addition to and
consistent with applicable State requirements for resisting wind forces;

New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system;

New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems and discharges from the
systems into flood waters;

On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid
impairment to them, or contamination from them, during flooding; and,

Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvement to a structure which is not
compliant with the provisions of this ordinance, shall be undertaken only if the
non- conformity is not furthered, extended or replaced.

If the proposed development is located in multiple flood zones or multiple base
flood elevation cross the proposed site, the higher or more restrictive base flood
elevation or future condition elevation and development standards shall take
precedence.

Building Standards for Structures and Buildings Within the Future-
Conditions Floodplain

The following provisions, in addition to those in Section 5.1, shall apply:

1)

Residential and Non-Residential Building Structures

@) New construction. New construction of principal buildings, including
manufactured homes shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-
conditions floodplain unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5
have been met. If all of the requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 17 of 26





(2)

(3)

(4)

(b)

Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

been met, all new construction shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated no lower than three (3) feet above the base flood
elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to
elevate the structure, openings sufficient to equalize the hydrologic flood
forces on exterior walls and to facilitate the unimpeded movements of
floodwaters shall be provided in accordance with standards of Section
5.1(5). A registered Professional Engineer or architect shall certify that the
design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted
standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall provide
such certification to the Fayette County Engineering Department.

Substantial Improvements. Substantial improvement of any principal
structure or manufactured home shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated no lower than three (3) feet above the base flood
elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to
elevate a structure, openings sufficient to equalize the hydrologic flood
forces on exterior walls and to facilitate the unimpeded movements of
flood waters shall be provided in accordance with standards of Section
5.1(5). Aregistered Professional Engineer or architect shall certify that
the design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted
standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall provide
such certification to the Fayette County Engineering Department.

Accessory Structures and Facilities

Accessory structures and facilities (i.e., barns, sheds, gazebos, detached garages,
parking lots, recreational facilities and other similar non-habitable structures and
facilities) which are permitted to be located within the limits of the floodplain
shall be constructed of flood-resistant materials and designed to pass all
floodwater in accordance with Section 5.1(5) and be anchored to prevent
flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure.

Standards for Recreational Vehicles
All recreational vehicles placed on sites must either:

(@)

(b)

Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed
and ready for highway use, (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway
use if it is licensed, on its wheels or jacking system, attached to the site
only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no
permanently attached structures or additions); or

The recreational vehicle must meet all the requirements for Residential
Buildings—Substantial Improvements (Section 5.2(1)(b)), including the
anchoring and elevation requirements.

Standards for Manufactured Homes

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 18 of 26





5.3

Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

@) New manufactured homes shall not be allowed to be placed within the
limits of the future-conditions floodplain unless all requirements of
Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met.
(b) Manufactured homes placed and/or substantially improved in an existing
manufactured home park or subdivision shall be elevated so that either:
Q) The lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated no lower
than three (3) feet above the level of the base flood elevation, or
one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever
is higher; or

(i)  The manufactured home chassis is elevated and supported by
reinforced piers (or other foundation elements of at least an
equivalent strength) of no less than 36 inches in height above
grade.

(©) All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an adequately
anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral
movement in accordance with standards of Section 5.1(7).

Building Standards for Structures and Buildings Authorized Adjacent to the
Future-Conditions Floodplain

For purposes of this ordinance, the term “adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain”
includes: 1) all buildings and structures on a property that contains (partially or entirely)
an Area of Special Flood Hazard; and 2) all buildings and structures on property that
shares a common property line within another parcel that contains an Area of Special
Flood Hazard. Building and structures adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain shall
meet the following:

1)

Residential and Non-Residential Buildings — For new construction or substantial
improvement of any construction, the elevation of the lowest floor, including
basement and access to the building, shall be at least three (3) feet above the base
flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher.

Compliance with the above requirement shall be determined by a certified as-built
Elevation Certificate or Flood-Proofing Certificate for non-residential
construction including the lowest floor elevation or flood-proofing level and
submitted immediately upon completion of floodproofing or survey work. The
Elevation Certificate shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a
registered land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the same.

When flood-proofing is utilized for non-residential structures, said certification
shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or
architect and certified by the same.

@) Buildings and structures authorized adjacent to the future-conditions
floodplain may be exempt from the requirements of this section if the
following conditions apply:

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 19 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Q) The building(s) or structure(s) is not within the same sub-basin as
the Area of Special Flood Hazard and the drainage divide between
the Area of Special Flood Hazard and the building or structure of
concern is at least three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or
one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever
is higher; or

(i) The Area of Special Flood Hazard is a man-made hazard
associated with a storm sewer system (e.g., a yard drain) and the
grading within the sub-basin provides unconstrained, positive
drainage away from the building or structure at a minimum slope
of 2 percent. As-built elevation data, certified by a registered land
surveyor, may be required to verify these conditions.

(b) The Fayette County Engineering Department shall determine if either of
these conditions are applicable to a building or structure. Alternatively,
the owner/developed may provide a letter justifying applicability of the
exemptions. The letter shall be prepared by a registered professional
engineer and shall be reviewed and approved by the Engineering
Department in order for the exemption to be valid. In either case, the
owner/applicant shall be solely responsible for providing any as-built
elevation data necessary to determine applicability of the exemptions. The
elevation data shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a
registered land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the
same.

5.4. Building Standards for Residential Single-Lot Developments on Streams

Without an Established Base Flood Elevations and/or Floodway (A-Zones)
For a residential single-lot development not part of a subdivision that has Areas of
Special Flood Hazard, where streams exist but no base flood data have been provided (A-
Zones), the Fayette County Engineering Department shall review and reasonably utilize
any available scientific or historic flood elevation data, base flood elevation and
floodway data, or future-conditions flood elevation data available from a Federal, State,
local or other source, in order to administer the provisions and standards of this
ordinance.

If data are not available from any of these sources, the following provisions shall apply:

1) No encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located within an
area equal to twice the width of the stream or fifty (50) feet from the top of the
bank of the stream, whichever is greater.

2 In special flood hazard areas without base flood or future-conditions flood
elevation data, new construction and substantial improvements of existing
structures shall have the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including
basement) elevated no less than three (3) feet above the ground immediately

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 20 of 26





5.5.

Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

around the building and positive drainage must be provided at a minimum two (2)
percent slope away from the building. Openings sufficient to facilitate the
unimpeded movements of floodwaters shall be provided in accordance with
Section 5.1(5).

Building Standards for Areas of Shallow Flooding (AO-Zones)

Areas of Special Flood Hazard may include designated "AQ" shallow flooding areas.
These areas have base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) feet above ground, with no
clearly defined channel. In these areas the following provisions apply:

1)

(3)

5.6.
(1)

()
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

All substantial improvements of residential and non-residential structures shall
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to no lower than one (1) foot
above the flood depth number in feet specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM), above the highest adjacent grade. If no flood depth number is specified,
the lowest floor, including basement, shall be elevated at least three (3) feet above
the highest adjacent grade. Openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded
movements of flood waters shall be provided in accordance with standards of
Section 5.1(5).

Drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwater around and away from any
proposed structure.

Standards for Subdivisions
All subdivision proposals shall identify the Areas of Special Flood Hazards and
provide base flood elevation data and future-conditions flood elevation data;

All residential lots in a subdivision proposal shall have sufficient buildable area
outside of the future-conditions floodplain such that encroachments into the
future-conditions floodplain for residential structures will not be required;

All subdivision plans will provide the elevations of proposed structures in
accordance with Section 3.2.

All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood
damage;

All subdivision proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as water,
sanitary sewer, gas, and electrical systems located and constructed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters, and discharges from the systems into flood
waters; and,

All subdivision proposals shall include adequate drainage and stormwater
management facilities per the requirements of Fayette County to reduce potential
exposure to flood hazards.

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 21 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Section 6. Variance Procedures

The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been
denied a permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not
applied for a permit because it is clear that the proposed development activity would be
inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance. A request for a variance may be
submitted by an applicant who has been denied a permit by the Fayette County
Engineering Department or by an owner or developer who has not previously applied for
a permit for the reasons stated herein above.

(1)

(2)

©)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

Requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance shall be submitted
to the Fayette County Engineering Department. All such requests shall be heard
and decided in accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the
Fayette County Engineering Department. At a minimum, such procedures shall
include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.

Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Fayette County Engineering
Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to the Planning
Commission as established by Fayette County in accordance with procedures to
be published in writing by the Planning Commission. At a minimum, such
procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be
heard.

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Commission may appeal
such decision to the Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-4-1 of
the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of Historic structures upon
a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the
structure's continued designation as an Historic structure, and the variance issued
shall be the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of
the structure.

Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of a
functionally dependent use, provided the criteria of this Section are met, no
reasonable alternative exists, and the development is protected by methods that
minimize flood damage during the base flood and create no additional threats to
public safety.

Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in
flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

In reviewing such requests, the Fayette County Engineering Department and
Fayette County Planning Commission shall consider all technical evaluations,

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 22 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.Egsa
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

relevant factors, and all standards specified in this and other sections of this
ordinance.

(8) Conditions for Variances:

@) A variance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are

met:

Q) a finding of good and sufficient cause;

(i) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in
exceptional hardship; and,

(iii)  adetermination that the granting of a variance will not result in
increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety,
extraordinary public expense, or the creation of a nuisance.

(b) The provisions of this ordinance are minimum standards for flood loss
reduction; therefore, any deviation from the standards must be weighed
carefully. Variances shall only be issued upon determination that the
variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford
relief; and, in the instance of a Historic structure, a determination that the
variance is the minimum necessary so as not to destroy the historic
character and design of the building.

(©) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice
specifying the difference between the base flood elevation and the
elevation of the proposed lowest floor and stating that the cost of flood
insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk to life and
property resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation.

(d) The Fayette County Engineering Department shall maintain the records of
all appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency
Management Agency upon request.

9) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time
the request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as Fayette
County Engineering Department and Planning Commission shall deem necessary
to the consideration of the request.

(10)  Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this
ordinance, Fayette County Engineering Department and the Planning
Commission may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as they
deem necessary or appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this ordinance.

(11)  Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.”

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 23 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

Section 7. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties

Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements
of an approved stormwater management plan or permit may be subject to the
enforcement actions outlined in this Section. Any such action or inaction which is
continuous with respect to time is deemed to be a public nuisance and may be abated by
injunctive or other equitable relief. The imposition of any of the penalties described
below shall not prevent such equitable relief. The imposition of any of the penalties
described below shall not prevent such equitable relief.

7.1.  Notice of Violation

If the Fayette County Engineering Department determines that an applicant or other
responsible person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an
approved stormwater management plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a
written notice of violation to such applicant or other responsible person. Where a person
is engaged in activity covered by this ordinance without having first secured a permit
therefore, the notice of violation shall be served on the owner or the responsible person in
charge of the activity being conducted on the site.

The notice of violation shall contain:

1) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person;
(2 The address or other description of the site upon which the violation is occurring;
3) A statement specifying the nature of the violation;

4) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction
into compliance with the permit, the stormwater management plan or this
ordinance and the date for the completion of such remedial action;

5) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to
whom the notice of violation is directed; and,

(6) A statement that the determination of violation may be appealed to the Fayette
County Engineering Department by filing a written notice of appeal within thirty
(30) days after the notice of violation (except, that in the event the violation
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice
shall be sufficient).

7.2.  Penalties

In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been
completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or
more of the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to
whom the notice of violation was directed. Before taking any of the following actions or
imposing any of the following penalties, the Fayette County Engineering Department
shall first notify the applicant or other responsible person in writing of its intended action,

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 24 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.EZEE
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

and shall provide a reasonable opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in
the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety,
24 hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure such violation. In the event the applicant or
other responsible person fails to cure such violation after such notice and cure period, the
Fayette County Engineering Department may take any one or more of the following
actions or impose any one or more of the following penalties.

1)

)

©)

(4)

()

Stop Work Order -The Fayette County Engineering Department may issue a
stop work order which shall be served on the applicant or other responsible
person. The stop work order shall remain in effect until the applicant or other
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of
violation or has otherwise cured the violation or violations described therein,
provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified to enable the
applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to
cure such violation or violations.

Withhold Certificate of Occupancy - The Fayette County Engineering
Department may refuse to issue a certificate of occupancy for the building or
other improvements constructed or being constructed on the site until the
applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in
the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described therein.

Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit - The Fayette County
Engineering Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit authorizing
the development project. A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be
reinstated after the applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial
measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations
described therein, provided such permit may be reinstated (upon such conditions
as the Fayette County Engineering Department may deem necessary) to enable
the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures
to cure such violations.

Civil Penalties - In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to
take the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to
cure the violations described therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period
as the Fayette County Engineering Department shall deem appropriate (except,
that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or
public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient) after the Fayette County
Engineering Department has taken one or more of the actions described above,
the Fayette County Engineering Department may impose a penalty not to exceed
$1,000 (depending on the severity of the violation) for each day the violation is
not remediated after receipt of the notice of violation.

Criminal Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, the
Fayette County Engineering Department may issue a citation to the applicant or

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 25 of 26





Board o ;E. SSIOREFSWORSHOR tgtS.Egsa
Board of Commissioner’'s Workshop — July 2008

other responsible person, requiring such person to appear in Fayette County State
Court to answer charges for such violation. Upon conviction, such person shall
be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or imprisonment for 60 days or both.
Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation shall occur shall
constitute a separate offense.

Ordinance adopted on

By:

Certified by:

Date:

Created on 6/18/2008 3:42:00 PM Page 26 of 26





El a4 0N Py 41 Ordina
mOOtTDamagerreventon—oramhance

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT-HLOOD
BAMAGEPREVENHON ORDINANCE

Deseription:- Overview — not to be included with ordinance

The purpose of this ordinance is to completely replace existing Article
IV, Floodplain Regulations of Fayette County’s Development
Regulations.

Floodplain management involves the designation of flood-prone areas and
the managing of their uses. It is also aimed at minimizing modifications to
streams, reducing flood hazards, and protecting the beneficial uses of the
floodplain such as water quality protection. As such, floodplain
management can be seen as a subset of the larger consideration of surface
water and stormwater management.

Floodplain regulations and development restrictions can greatly reduce
future flooding impacts, preserve greenspace and habitat, and protect their
function in safely conveying floodwaters and protecting water quality. This
model ordinance aims to help communities integrate floodplain management
with stormwater management during the land development process.

The ordinance requires that a local government regulate the floodplains that
will be expected with future land-use conditions, which are based upon the
communities adopted future land use map, zoning, or watershed study
projections. The ordinance also requires the local government to regulate
floodplains on all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres and greater.

In order to administer the ordinance, “future-conditions” floodplains must be
established:

e Future-conditions floodplains for streams with a drainage area of one
square mile (640 acres) and greater in size are to be delineated by the
local jurisdiction. As required in the District-wide Watershed

Page 1 of 30





El a4 0N Py 41 Ordina
mOOtTDamagerreventon—oramhance

Management Plan, cities and counties are expected to model and map
at least 10% of their area each year until future-conditions floodplains
have been established for the entire community.

e For streams with a drainage area between 100 acres and 640 acres,
the local jurisdiction shall model and map the future-conditions
floodplains -or- require the future-conditions floodplains be
determined on a per development basis by the applicant.

e For development projects in watersheds of any size where future-
conditions floodplains have not yet been established, the applicant
will be required to determine the future-conditions floodplain
boundaries located on their property.

Page 2 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 4+
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

Article IV.
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT tFLOODBD BAMAGEPREVENTION
ORDINANCE

Table of Contents

Section 1. General Provisions

Section 2. Definitions

Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements
Section 4. Standards for Development

Section 5. Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction
Section 6. Variance Procedures

Section 7. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties

Introduction

It is hereby determined that:

The flood hazard areas of {urisdiction) Fayette County are subject to periodic
inundation which may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards,
disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for
flood relief and protection, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect
the public health, safety and general welfare.

Flood hazard areas can serve important stormwater management, water quality,
streambank protection, stream corridor protection, wetland preservation and ecological
purposes when permanently protected as undisturbed or minimally disturbed areas.

Effective floodplain management and flood hazard protection activities can (1) Protect
human life and health; (2) Minimize damage to private property; (3) Minimize damage to
public facilities and infrastructure such as water and gas mains, electric, telephone and
sewer lines, streets and bridges located in floodplains; and (4) Minimize expenditure of
public money for costly flood control projects associated with flooding and generally
undertaken at the expense of the general public.

Acrticle 1X, Section Il of the Constitution of the State of Georgia and Section 36-1-20(a)
of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated have delegated the responsibility to local
governmental units to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety,
and general welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, (jurisdiction), Fayette County,
Georgia, does ordain this ordinance and establishes this set of floodplain management
and flood hazard reduction policies for the purpose of regulating the use of flood hazard
areas. It is determined that the regulation of flood hazard areas and the prevention of
flood damage are in the public interest and will minimize threats to public health and
safety, as well as to private and public property.

Page 3 of 30





El a4 0N Proy
OOt amageT1even T

o)
&
5

&
aq
D
d
a

Section 1. General Provisions

1.1.  Purpose and Intent

The purpose of this ordinance is to protect, maintain and enhance the public health,
safety, environment and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to
flood conditions in flood hazard areas, as well as to protect the beneficial uses of
floodplain areas for water quality protection, streambank and stream corridor protection,
wetlands preservation and ecological and environmental protection by provisions
designed to:

1) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such uses,
be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

(2 Restrict or prohibit uses which are dangerous to health, safety and property due to
flooding or erosion hazards, or which increase flood heights, velocities, or
erosion;

3 Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase
flood damage or erosion;

4) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert
flood waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands;

(5) Limit the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective
barriers which are involved in the accommodation of flood waters; and,

(6) Protect the stormwater management, water quality, streambank protection, stream
corridor protection, wetland preservation and ecological functions of natural
floodplain areas.

1.2.  Applicability

This ordinance shall be applicable to all Areas of Special Flood Hazard within
(Jurisdiction) Fayette County and all areas “adjacent” to an Area of Special Flood
Hazard, as defined herein.

A property shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this ordinance whenever a
building permit, land disturbance permit, certificate of zoning compliance,
subdivision, or reconfiguration of a parcel is required and/or approved by the
county. The conditions of this ordinance shall supersede floodplain constraints
depicted on final plats, construction drawings, surveys, etc. The effective date of
this ordinance is October 1, 2008.

1.3.  Designation of Ordinance Administrator

Page 4 of 30





Fl 4N n rlnn
eetroamage evention-Ordinanee

The {title-of-administrator)-or{designree) County Engineer is hereby appointed to

administer and implement the provisions of this ordinance.

1.4.  Basis for Area of Special Flood Hazard — Flood Area Maps and Studies
For the purposes of this ordinance, the following are adopted by reference:

1) The most recent Flood Insurance Study (FIS) on file with the Fayette County
Engineering Department dated > with accompanying maps and

other supporting data and any revision thereto are hereby adopted by reference—

2 Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the base flood
elevation or delineation of the 100-year floodplain and flood-prone areas include:

@ Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army
Corps of Engineers, the United States Geological Survey or any other
local, State or Federal agency applicable to {furisdiction); Fayette
County; or

(b) Any base flood study authored by a registered professional engineer in the
State of Georgia which has been prepared by FEMA approved
methodology and approved by {lecal-permitting-autherity)— the Fayette

County Engineering Department.

3) Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the future-
conditions flood elevation or delineation of the future-conditions floodplain and
flood-prone areas include:

@ Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army
Corps of Engineers, the United States Geological Survey, or any other
local, State or Federal agency applicable to {urisdiction) Fayette County
or

(b) Any future-conditions flood study that is 1) authored by a registered
professional engineer in the State of Georgia; 2) prepared using FEMA
approved methodology; and 3} which-has-beenprepared-by-FEMA

approved-methodolegy approved by (local-permitting-autherity) the
Fayette County Engineering Department.

4) The repository for public inspection of the FIS, accompanying maps and other
supporting data is located at {specifyrepositery-location) the Fayette County

Engineering Department.

1.5. Compatibility with Other Regulations

Page 5 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 4+
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other ordinance, rule, regulation,
statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law. The requirements
of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule,
regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes
restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other
provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or impose higher protective
standards for human health or the environment shall control.

1.6.  Severability

If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this
ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment
shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph,
subdivision or clause of this ordinance.

1.7.  Warning and Disclaimer of Liability

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for
regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger
floods can and will occur; flood heights may be increased by manmade or natural causes.
This ordinance does not imply that land outside the Areas of Special Flood Hazard or
uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This
ordinance shall not create liability on the part of {urisdiction) Fayette County or by any
officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this
ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully made there under.

Section 2. Definitions

""Addition (to an existing building)" means any walled and roofed expansion to the
perimeter of a building in which the addition is connected by a common load-bearing
wall other than a fire wall. Any walled and roofed addition which is connected by a fire
wall or is separated by an independent perimeter load-bearing wall shall be considered
New Construction.

"Appeal' means a request for a review of the (appeinted-efficial) County Engineer’s
interpretation of any provision of this ordinance.

"Area of Shallow Flooding™ means a designated AO or AH Zone on a community's
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with base flood depths from one to three feet, and/or
where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is
unpredictable and indeterminate, and where velocity flow may be evident.

""Area of Special Flood Hazard" is the land subject to a one percent or greater chance
of flooding in any given year. This includes all floodplain and flood prone areas at or
below the base flood elevation (including A, A1-30, A-99, AE, AO, AH, and AR on the
FHBM or the FIRM), all floodplain and flood prone areas at or below the future-

od prone areas as referenced in Section 1.4.

Page 6 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

Hood-hazard-delineated. For drainage areas less than 100 acres, the area of special
flood hazard shall be delineated at the discretion of the County Engineer.

""Base Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded
in any given year, also known as the 100-year flood.

""Base Flood Elevation' means the highest water surface elevation anticipated at any
given point during the base flood.

""Basement' means that portion of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground
level) on more than one side en-al-sides.

"Building" means any structure built for support, shelter, or enclosure for any occupancy
or storage.

“County Engineer” means the person so appointed by the Fayette County Board of
Commissioners and his/her employees designated to enforce and interpret this
article. If not designated otherwise, the County Engineer is the Director of
Engineering.

"Development’ means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling,
clearing, grubbing, grading, paving, any other installation of impervious cover,
excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.

"Elevated Building' means a non-basement building built to have the lowest floor of
the lowest enclosed area elevated above the ground level by means of fill, solid
foundation perimeter walls, pilings, columns, piers, or shear walls adequately anchored
S0 as not to impair the structural integrity of the building during a base flood event.
"Existing Construction™ Any structure for which the "start of construction”
commenced before 23 June 1983 (the date of Fayette County’s original floodplaln

"EX|st|ng Manufactured Home Park or SudeVISIOI‘l" means a manufactured home
park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which
the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum the installation of
utilities, the construction of streets, and final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads)

is completed before a specific-datefi-ethe-effective-date-of the FIRSTfloedplain
managementregulations-adopted-by-a-community}-23 June 1983 (the date of Fayette

County’s original floodplain management regulation).
"Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision® means the
preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on
which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including the installation of utilities, the
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.
"FEMA™ means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
"Flood" or ""Flooding" means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete
inundation of normally dry land areas from:
(@) the overflow of inland ertidal waters; or
(b) the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any
source.

Page 7 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

"Flood Hazard Boundary Map'* or "FHBM" means an official map of a community,
issued by the Federal Insurance Administration, where the boundaries of areas of special
flood hazard have been defined as Zone A.
"Flood Insurance Rate Map' or ""FIRM" means an official map of a community,
issued by the Federal Insurance Administration, delineating the areas of special flood
hazard and/or risk premium zones applicable to the community.
"Flood Insurance Study' or ""FIS" means the official report by the Federal Insurance
Administration evaluating flood hazards and containing flood profiles and water surface
elevations of the base flood.
"Floodplain™ means any land area susceptible to flooding during the base flood.
"Floodproofing™ means any combination of structural and non-structural additions,
changes, or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real
estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their
contents.
"Floodway" or ""Regulatory Floodway'" means the channel of a stream or other
watercourse and the adjacent areas of the floodplain which is necessary to contain and
discharge the base flood flow without cumulatively increasing the base flood elevation
more than one foot.
"Functionally Dependent Use' means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose
unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water.
"Future-conditions Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being
equaled or exceeded in any given year based on future-conditions hydrology. Also
known as the 100-year future-conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Flood Elevation™ means the flood standard equal to or higher than
the Base Flood Elevation. The Future-conditions Flood Elevation is defined as the
highest water surface anticipated at any given point during the future-conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Floodplain® means any land area susceptible to flooding by the
future-conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Hydrology'* means the flood discharges associated with projected
land-use conditions based on a community’s zoning map, comprehensive land-use plans,
and/or watershed study projections, and without consideration of projected future
construction of flood detention structures or projected future hydraulic modifications
within a stream or other waterway, such as bridge and culvert construction, fill, and
excavation.
""Highest Adjacent Grade' means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface,
prior to construction, adjacent to the proposed foundation of a building.
""Historic Structure' means any structure that is;
(a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing
maintained by the U.S. Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the
Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the
National Register;
(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a
district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered
historic district;

Page 8 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

(c) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places and determined as
eligible by states with historic preservation programs which have been approved
by the Secretary of the Interior; or
(d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places and determined as
eligible by communities with historic preservation programs that have been
certified either:
1. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the
Interior, or
2. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved
programs.
"Lowest Floor' means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including basement.
An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, used solely for parking of vehicles, building
access, or storage, in an area other than a basement, is not considered a building's lowest
floor, provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of
other provisions of this ordinance.
""Manufactured Home™ means a building, transportable in one or more sections built on
a permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation
when connected to the required utilities. The term includes any structure commonly
referred to as a “mobile home” regardless of the date of manufacture. The term also
includes parked trailers, travel trailers and similar transportable structures placed on a site
for 180 consecutive days or longer and intended to be improved property.
""Mean Sea Level™ means the average height of the sea for all stages of the tide. It is
used as a reference for establishing various elevations within the floodplain. For
purposes of this ordinance the term is synonymous with National Geodetic Vertical
Datum (NGVD) and/or the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988.
""National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD)" as corrected in 1929 is a vertical control
used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.
""New Construction' means any structure (see definition) for which the “start of
construction” commenced after June 23, 1983, and includes any subsequent

|mprovements to the structure. {—Fe—th&eﬁeetu%éa%&ef—the-llmé:llﬂeedplam

""New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision' means a manufactured home park or
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the
manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of
utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete

pads) is completed on or after June 23, 19839%—%heeﬁeetw&d&t&eﬁhe#mt~ﬂeedpia+n

""North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988" is a vertical control used as a

reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

"Owner" means the legal or beneficial owner of a site, including but not limited to, a
mortgagee or vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person,
firm or corporation in control of the site.

Page 9 of 30





El a4 0N Proy
OOt amageT1even T

o)
&
5

&
aq
D
d
a

"Permit’ means the permit Certificate of Zoning Compliance issued by the-{lecal
permitting-autherity) Fayette County to the applicant which is required prior to
undertaking any development activity.
""Recreational Vehicle™ means a vehicle which is:
(@) built on a single chassis;
(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
(c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by light duty truck; and,
(d) designed primarily net for use as-a-permanent-dwelling-but as temporary
living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use and not for use
as a permanent dwelling.
"'Site"" means the parcel of land being developed, or the portion thereof on which the
development project is located.
""Start of Construction™ means the date the permit was issued, provided the actual start
of construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within 180 days of the permit
date. The actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of the structure
such as the pouring of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or
any work beyond the stage of excavation, and includes the placement of a manufactured
home on a foundation. A minimum of one inspection approval must be obtained as
evidence that work was commenced or that work has continued. Permanent
construction does not include initial land preparation, such as clearing, grading and
filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include
excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary
forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of buildings appurtenant to the
permitted structure, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or part of the
main structure. (NOTE: accessory structures are not exempt from any ordinance
requirements). For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the
first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or
not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.
""Structure™ means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground, a
manufactured home, a gas or liquid storage tank.
""Subdivision™ means the division of a tract or parcel of land resulting in one or more
new lots or building sites for the purpose, whether immediately or in the future, of sale,
other transfer of ownership or land development, and includes divisions of land resulting
from or made in connection with the layout or development of a new street or roadway or
a change in an existing street or roadway.
""Substantial Damage' means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby
the cost of restoring the structure to it's before damaged condition would equal or exceed
50 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.
""Substantial Improvement' means any combination of permitted repairs,
reconstruction, alteration, or improvements to a building, taking place during a 10-year
period, in which the cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of
the structure prior to the improvement. The market value of the building means (1) the
appraised value of the structure as determined by the Fayette County Tax Assessor
prior to the start of the initial repair or improvement, or (2) in the case of damage, the
value of the structure prior to the damage occurring. This term includes structures which

Page 10 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

have incurred "substantial damage" regardless of the actual amount of repair work
performed. For the purposes of this definition, "substantial improvement™ is considered
to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor system, or other structural
part of the building commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external
dimensions of the building. The term does not, however, include those improvements of a
building required to comply with existing health, sanitary, or safety code specifications
which are solely necessary to assure safe living conditions, which have been pre-
identified by the Code Enforcement Official, and not solely triggered by an improvement
or repair project.

""Substantially Improved Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision™ is
where the repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and
pads equals or exceeds 50 percent of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before the
repair, reconstruction or improvement commenced.

"Variance™ is a grant of relief from the requirements of this ordinance which permits
construction in a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance.

"Violation™ means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant
with the community’s floodplain management regulations. A structure or other
development without the elevation certificate, other certificates, or other evidence of
compliance required in this ordinance is presumed to be in violation until such time as
that documentation is provided.

Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements

3.1.  Permit Application Requirements
No owner or developer shall perform any development activities on a site where-an-Area

of Special Flood-Hazard-is-toeated without first meeting the applicable requirements of

this ordinance prior to commencing the proposed activity.

Unless specifically excluded by this ordinance, any landowner or developer desiring a

permit for a development activity shall submit to the-(lecal-permitting-authority)-apermit
appheation-on-aform-provided-by the Fayette County Engineering Department

documentation showing compliance with this ordinance.

No permit will be approved for any development activities that do not meet the
requirements, restrictions and criteria of this ordinance.

3.2. Floodplaln Management Plan Requwements

prevennen—pl&n A Floodplaln Management Plan shall be required for all prOJects
with development activities within, either partially or completely, an Area of Special
Flood Hazard. This plan shall include the following items:

1) Site plan drawn to scale, which includes but is not limited to:

Page 11 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

0]
X
<%
b
D
i
a

@) Existing and proposed elevations of the area in question and the nature,
location and dimensions of existing and/or proposed structures, earthen fill
placement, amount and location of excavation material, and storage of
materials or equipment;

(b) For all proposed structures, spot ground elevations at building corners and
20-foot or smaller intervals along the foundation footprint, or one foot
contour elevations throughout the building site;

(© Proposed locations of water supply, sanitary sewer, and utilities;

(d) Proposed locations of drainage and stormwater management facilities;

(e) Proposed grading plan;

()] Base flood elevations and future-conditions flood elevations;

(9) Boundaries of the base flood floodplain and future-conditions floodplain;

(h) If applicable, the location of the floodway; and

Q) Certification of the above by a registered professional engineer or
surveyor.

@) Building and foundation design detail, including but not limited to:

@ Elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent grade) of the
lowest floor, including basement, of all proposed structures;

(b) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential
structure will be floodproofed.

(©) Certification that any proposed non-residential floodproofed structure
meets the criteria in Section 5.2(2);

(d) For enclosures below the base flood elevation, location and total net area
of foundation openings as required in Section 5.1(5).

(e) Design plans certified by a registered professional engineer or architect for
all proposed structure(s).

3) Description, based on engineering calculations of modeling, of the extent to
which any watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed
development;

4) Hard copies and digital files of computer models, if any, copies of work maps,
comparison of pre-and post development conditions base flood elevations, future-
conditions flood elevations, flood protection elevations, Special Flood Hazard
Areas and regulatory floodway widths, flood profiles and all other computations
and other information similar to that presented in the FIS;

(5) Copies of all applicable State and Federal permits necessary for proposed
development; and

(6) All appropriate certifications required under this ordinance.

Page 12 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

The approved Floodplain Management /loed-damageprevention Plan shall contain
certification by the applicant that all development activities will be done according to the

plan or previously approved revisions. Any and all development permits and/or use and
occupancy certificates or permits may be revoked at any time if the construction and
development activities are not in strict accordance with approved plans.

3.3.  Construction Stage Submittal Requirements

For all new construction and substantial improvements on sites with a Floodplain
Management/floed-damageprevention Plan, the permit holder shall provide to the
(administrator) Fayette County Engineering Department a certified as-built Elevation
Certificate, or Flood-proofing Certificate for non-residential construction, including the
lowest floor elevation or flood-proofing level immediately after the lowest floor or flood-
proofing is completed. A final Elevation Certificate shall be provided after completion of
construction including final grading of the site. Any lowest floor certification made
relative to mean sea level shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a
registered land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by same. When flood-
proofing is utilized for non-residential structures, said certification shall be prepared by
or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or architect and certified by
same.

Any work undertaken prior to approval of these certifications shall be at the permit
holder's risk. The (administrater) Fayette County Engineering Department shall
review the above referenced certification data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such
review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior to further work
being allowed to proceed. Failure to submit certification or failure to make the
corrections required hereby shall be cause to issue a stop work order for the project.

3.4.  Duties and Responsibilities of the Administrator
Duties of the Fayette County Engineering Department shall include, but shall not be
limited to:

1) Review all development applications and permits to assure that the requirements
of this ordinance have been satisfied and to determine whether proposed building
sites will be reasonably safe from flooding;

2 Require that copies of all necessary permits from governmental agencies from
which approval is required by Federal or state law, including but not limited to
Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972,
#33 U.S.C. 1334, be provided and maintained on file;

3) When base flood elevation data or floodway data have not been provided, then the
Fayette County Engineering Department shall require the applicant to obtain,
review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation and floodway data
available from a Federal, state or other sources in order to meet the provisions of
Sections 4 and 5;

Page 13 of 30





El

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

0]
X
<%
b
D
i
a

Review and record the actual elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest
adjacent grade) of the lowest floor, including basement, of all new or substantially
improved structures;

Review and record the actual elevation, in relation to mean sea level to which any
substantially improved structures have been flood-proofed;

When flood-proofing is utilized for a non-residential structure, the
owner/developer shall provide to the Fayette County Engineering
Department shal-ebtain certification of design criteria from a registered
professional engineer or architect;

Notify affected adjacent communities and the Georgia Department of Natural
Resources prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit
evidence of such notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA);

Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Areas
of Special Flood Hazard (e.g., where there appears to be a conflict between a
mapped boundary and actual field conditions) the Fayette County Engineer shall
make the necessary interpretation. Any person contesting the location of the
boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as
provided in this ordinance. Where floodplain elevations have been defined, the
floodplain shall be determined based on flood elevations rather than the area
graphically delineated on the floodplain maps; and,

All records pertaining to the provisions of this ordinance shall be maintained
the-office-of- the by Fayette County and shall be open for public inspection.

Section 4. Standards for Development

4.1.

1)

(2)

Definition of Floodplain Boundaries and Areas of Special Flood Hazards

Studied “A” zones, as identified in the FIS, shall be used to establish base flood
elevations whenever available.

For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the future-conditions

flood elevations shall be provided by the {local-permitting-autherity) Fayette

County Engineering Department. If future-conditions elevation data is not

available from (local-permitting-authority) the Fayette County Engineering

Department, then it shall be determined by a registered professional engineer

using a method approved by FEMA and the {ecal-permittingauthority) Fayette
County Engineering Department.

Page 14 of 30





El

4.2.

(1)

4.3.

1)

()

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

(3) For streams or other drainage basins with drainage areas less that 100 acres,

Areas of Special Flood hazard shall be determined by a registered
professional engineer using a method approved by the Fayette County
engineering Department, as required by the County Engineer.

(4) The Area of Special Flood Hazard shall be delineated for all man-made flood

hazards (e.g., yard drains, stormwater management structures, inlets to
storm sewer systems, etc.) by a registered professional engineer.

Definition of Floodway Boundaries

The width of a floodway shall be determined from the FIS or FEMA approved
flood study. For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the

regulatory floodway shall be provided by the {oeal-permitting-authority) Fayette
County Engineering Department. If floodway data is not available from the

Hocal-permitting-autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department , then it

shall be determined by a registered professional engineer using a method

approved by FEMA and the {lecal-permitting-autherity) Fayette County

Engineering Department.
General Standards

No development shall be allowed within the future-conditions floodplain that
could result in any of the following:

@) Raising the base flood elevation or future-conditions flood elevation equal
to or more than 0.01 foot;

(b) Reducing the base flood or future-conditions flood storage capacity;

(©) Changing the flow characteristics as to the depth and velocity of the
waters of the base flood or future-conditions flood as they pass both the
upstream and the downstream boundaries of the development area; or,

(d) Creating hazardous or erosion-producing velocities, or resulting in
excessive sedimentation.

Any development within the future-conditions floodplain allowed under (1) above
shall also meet the following conditions:

(a

encreachment—Acceptable means of providing required compensation
include lowering of natural ground elevations within the floodplain, or

Page 15 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

0]
X
<%
b
D
i
a

lowering of adjoining land areas to create additional floodplain storage. In
no case shall any required compensation be provided via bottom storage or
by excavating below the elevation of the top of the natural (pre-
development) stream channel unless such excavation results from the
widening or relocation of the stream channel;

@ Cut areas shall be stabilized and graded to a slope of no less than 2.0
percent;

(b) Effective transitions shall be provided such that flow velocities occurring
on both upstream and downstream properties are not increased or
decreased,;

(c) Verification of no-rise conditions (0.01 foot or less), flood storage
volumes, and flow characteristics shall be provided via a step-backwater
analysis meeting the requirements of Section 4.4;

(d) Public utilities and facilities, such as water, sanitary sewer, gas, and
electrical systems, shall be located and constructed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration or contamination from flood waters; and

(e) Any significant physical changes to the base flood floodplain shall be
submitted as a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) or
Conditional Letter of Map Amendment (CLOMA), whichever is
applicable. The CLOMR submittal shall be subject to approval by the
Hocal-permitting-autherity) the Fayette County Engineering
Department using the Community Consent forms before forwarding the
submittal package to FEMA for final approval. The responsibility for
forwarding the CLOMR to FEMA and for obtaining the CLOMR approval
shall be the responsibility of the applicant. Within six months of the
completion of construction, the applicant shall submit as-built surveys for
a final Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).

4.4. Engineering Study Requirements for Floodplain Encroachments

An engineering study is required, as appropriate to the proposed development activities
on the site, whenever a development proposes to disturb any land within the future-
conditions floodplain, except for a residential single-lot development on streams without
established base flood elevations and/or floodways for which the provisions of Section
5.4 apply. This study shall be prepared by a registered Professional Engineer in the State
of Georgia and made a part of the application for a permit. This information shall be
submitted to and approved by the {lecal-permitting-autherity) Fayette County
Engineering Department prior to the approval of any permit which would authorize the
disturbance of land located within the future-conditions floodplain. Such study shall
include:

1) Description of the extent to which any watercourse or floodplain will be altered or
relocated as a result of the proposed development;

Page 16 of 30





El

()

©)

(4)

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

Step-backwater analysis, using a FEMA-approved methodology approved by the
Hocal-permitting-autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department. Cross-

sections and flow information shall be obtained whenever available and
supplemented by the appllcant by the Englneerlng Department)—and—ﬂew

Whenever—avaueble Computatlons WI|| be shown dupllcatlng FIS results and will
then be rerun with the proposed modifications to determine the new base flood
profiles, and future-conditions flood profiles;

Floodplain storage calculations based on cross-sections (at least one every 100
feet) showing existing and proposed floodplain conditions to show that base flood
floodplain and future-conditions floodplain storage capacity would not be
diminished by the development;

The study shall include a preliminary plat, grading plan, or site plan, as
appropriate, which shall clearly define all future-conditions floodplain
encroachments.

4.5. Floodway Encroachments

Located within Areas of Special Flood Hazard are areas designated as floodway. A
floodway may be an extremely hazardous area due to velocity flood waters, debris or
erosion potential. In addition, floodways must remain free of encroachment in order to
allow for the discharge of the base flood without increased flood heights. Therefore the
following provisions shall apply:

1)

)

(3)

4.6.

Encroachments are prohibited, including earthen fill, new construction,
substantial improvements or other development within the regulatory floodway,
except for activities specifically allowed in (2) below.

Encroachments for bridges, culverts, roadways and utilities within the regulatory
floodway may be permitted provided it is demonstrated through hydrologic and
hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice
that the encroachment shall not result in any increase to the pre-project base flood
elevations, floodway elevations, or floodway widths during the base flood
discharge. A registered professional engineer must provide supporting technical
data and certification thereof; and,

If the applicant proposes to revise the floodway boundaries, no permit authorizing
the encroachment into or an alteration of the floodway shall be issued by the
Fayette County Engineering Department until an affirmative Conditional
Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) is issued by FEMA and no-rise certification is
approved by the Fayette County Engineering Department.

Maintenance Requirements

Page 17 of 30





El

a4 0N Proy
OOt amageT1even T

o)
&
5

&
aq
D
d
a

The property owner shall be responsible for continuing maintenance as may be needed
within an altered or relocated portion of a floodplain on his property so that the flood-
carrying or flood storage capacity is not diminished. The Fayette County Engineering
Department may direct the property owner (at no cost to Fayette County) to restore the
flood-carrying or flood storage capacity of the floodplain if the owner has not performed
maintenance as required by the approved floodplain management plan on file with the
Fayette County Engineering Department.

Section 5. Provisions for Flood Damage Reduction

5.1.

General Standards

In all Areas of Special Flood Hazard the following provisions apply:

1)

(2)

©)

(4)

()

New construction of principal buildings (residential or non-residential), including
manufactured homes, shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-
conditions floodplain, unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have
been met;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be
anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be
constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be
constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage;

Elevated Buildings - All new construction and substantial improvements of
existing structures that include any fully enclosed area located below the lowest
floor formed by foundation and other exterior walls shall be designed so as to be
an unfinished and flood resistant enclosure. The enclosure shall be designed to
equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the automatic
entry and exit of floodwater.

@ Designs for complying with this requirement must either be certified by a
professional engineer or architect or meet the following minimum criteria:
Q) Provide a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not
less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area
subject to flooding;
(i) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above
grade; and,

Page 18 of 30





El

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

5.2.

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

(iii)  Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other
coverings or devices provided they permit the automatic flow of
floodwater in both directions.

(b) So as not to violate the "Lowest Floor" criteria of this ordinance, the
unfinished and flood resistant enclosure shall solely be used for parking of
vehicles, limited storage of maintenance equipment used in connection
with the premises, or entry to the elevated area; and,

(©) The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be partitioned or
finished into separate rooms.

All heating and air conditioning equipment and components (including ductwork),
all electrical, ventilation, plumbing, and other service facilities shall be designed
and/or located three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above
the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher, so as to prevent water
from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of
flooding;

Manufactured homes shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral
movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of over-
the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. This standard shall be in addition to and
consistent with applicable State requirements for resisting wind forces;

New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system;

New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems and discharges from the
systems into flood waters;

On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid
impairment to them, or contamination from them, during flooding; and,

Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvement to a structure which is not
compliant with the provisions of this ordinance, shall be undertaken only if the
non- conformity is not furthered, extended or replaced.

If the proposed development is located in multiple flood zones or multiple base
flood elevation cross the proposed site, the higher or more restrictive base flood
elevation or future condition elevation and development standards shall take
precedence.

Building Standards for Structures and Buildings Within the Future-

Conditions Floodplain

The following provisions, in addition to those in Section 5.1, shall apply:

Page 19 of 30





El

a4 0N Py
oot amage—-+

0]
X
<%
b
D
i
a

1) Residential BuHding and Non-Residential Building Structures

(@)

(b)

New construction. New construction of principal buildings, including
manufactured homes shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-
conditions floodplain unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5
have been met. If all of the requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have
been met, all new construction shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated no lower than three (3) feet above the base flood
elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to
elevate the structure, openings sufficient to equalize the hydrologic flood
forces on exterior walls and to facilitate the unimpeded movements of
floodwaters shall be provided in accordance with standards of Section
5.1(5). A registered Professional Engineer or architect shall certify
that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with
accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and
shall provide such certification to the Fayette County Engineering
Department.

Substantial Improvements. Substantial improvement of any principal
structure or manufactured home shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated no lower than three (3) feet above the base flood
elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to
elevate a structure, openings sufficient to equalize the hydrologic flood
forces on exterior walls and to facilitate the unimpeded movements of
flood waters shall be provided in accordance with standards of Section
5.1(5). A registered Professional Engineer or architect shall certify
that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with
accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and
shall provide such certification to the Fayette County Engineering
Department.

Page 20 of 30





El

(3)

(4)

Q)

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

Accessory Structures and Facilities

Accessory structures and facilities (i.e., barns, sheds, gazebos, detached garages,
parking lots, recreational facilities and other similar non-habitable structures and
facilities) which are permitted to be located within the limits of the floodplain
shall be constructed of flood-resistant materials and designed to pass all
floodwater in accordance with Section 5.1(5) and be anchored to prevent
flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure.

Standards for Recreational Vehicles
All recreational vehicles placed on sites must either:
(a) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and
ready for highway use, (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is
licensed, on its wheels or jacking system, attached to the site only by quick
disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanently attached
structures or additions); or
(b) The recreational vehicle must meet all the requirements for Residential
Buildings—Substantial Improvements (Section 5.2(1b), including the anchoring
and elevation requirements.
Standards for Manufactured Homes
@) New manufactured homes shall not be allowed to be placed within the
limits of the future-conditions floodplain unless all requirements of
Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met.
(b)Manufactured homes placed and/or substantially improved in an
existing manufactured home park or subdivision shall be elevated so that
either:

Page 21 of 30





El

5.3.

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

Q) The lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated no lower
than three (3) feet above the level of the base flood elevation, or
one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever
is higher; or

(i) The manufactured home chassis is elevated and supported by
reinforced piers (or other foundation elements of at least an
equivalent strength) of no less than 36 inches in height above
grade.

(c) All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an adequately
anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral

movement in accordance with standards of Section 5.1(7).

Building Standards for Structures and Buildings Authorized Adjacent to the

Future-Conditions Floodplain

For purposes of this ordinance, the term “adjacent to the future-conditions
floodplain: 1) all buildings and structures on a property that contains (partially or
entirely) an Area of Special Flood Hazard; and 2) all buildings and structures on
property that share a common property line within another parcel that contains an
Area of Special Flood Hazard. Building and structures adjacent to the future-
conditions floodplain shall meet the following:

1)

Residential Buildings — For new construction or substantial improvement of
construction any principal residential bulding or manufactured home, the
elevation of the lowest floor, including basement and access to the building, shall
be at least three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher.

eendmensﬂﬂeedrelevauen—wmeheveH&ther Compllance with the above

requirement shall be determined by a certified as-built Elevation Certificate
or Flood-Proofing Certificate for non-residential construction including the
lowest floor elevation or flood-proofing level and submitted immediately
upon completion of floodproofing or survey work. The Elevation Certificate
shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a registered land
surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the same. When flood-
proofing is utilized for non-residential structures, said certification shall be
prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or
architect and certified by the same.

Page 22 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

(@) Buildings and structures authorized adjacent to the future-conditions
floodplain may be exempt from the requirements of this section if the
following conditions apply:

Q) The building(s) or structure(s) is not within the same sub-basin
as the Area of Special Flood Hazard and the drainage divide
between the Area of Special Flood Hazard and the building or
structure of concern is at least three (3) feet above the base
flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood
elevation, whichever is higher; or

(i)  The Area of Special Flood Hazard is a man-made hazard
associated with a storm sewer system (e.g., a yard drain) and
the grading within the sub-basin provides unconstrained,
positive drainage away from the building or structure at a
minimum slope of 2 percent. As-built elevation data, certified
by a registered land surveyor, may be required to verify these
conditions.

(b) The Fayette County Engineering Department shall determine if either
of these conditions are applicable to a building or structure.
Alternatively, the owner/developed may provide a letter justifying
applicability of the exemptions. The letter shall be prepared by a
registered professional engineer and shall be reviewed and approved
by the Engineering Department in order for the exemption to be valid.
In either case, the owner/applicant shall be solely responsible for
providing any as-built elevation data necessary to determine
applicability of the exemptions. The elevation data shall be prepared
by or under the direct supervision of a registered land surveyor or
professional engineer and certified by the same.

5.4.  Building Standards for Residential Single-Lot Developments on Streams
without Established Base Flood Elevations and/or Floodway (A-Zones)

For a residential single-lot development not part of a subdivision that has Areas of
Special Flood Hazard, where streams exist but no base flood data have been provided (A-
Zones), the {administrator) Fayette County Engineering Department shall review and
reasonably utilize any available scientific or historic flood elevation data, base flood
elevation and floodway data, or future-conditions flood elevation data available from a
Federal, State, local or other source, in order to administer the provisions and standards
of this ordinance.

If data are not available from any of these sources, the following provisions shall apply:

Page 23 of 30





El

1)

)

5.5.

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T rEverton—oraiha

Ordina
othr HEe

No encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located within an
area equal to twice the width of the stream or fifty (50) feet from the top of the
bank of the stream, whichever is greater.

In special flood hazard areas without base flood or future-conditions flood
elevation data, new construction and substantial improvements of existing
structures shall have the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including
basement) elevated no less than three (3) feet above the ground immediately
around the building and positive drainage must be provided at a minimum
two (2) percent slope away from the building. the-highestadjacent-grade-at the
buHding-site. Openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded movements of
floodwaters shall be provided in accordance with Section 5.1(5).

Building Standards for Areas of Shallow Flooding (AO-Zones)

Areas of Special Flood Hazard may include designated "AQ" shallow flooding areas.
These areas have base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) feet above ground, with no
clearly defined channel. In these areas the following provisions apply:

1)

(2)

5.6.

1)

All substantial improvements of residential and non-residential structures shall
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to no lower than one (1) foot
above the flood depth number in feet specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM), above the highest adjacent grade. If no flood depth number is specified,
the lowest floor, including basement, shall be elevated at least three (3) feet above
the highest adjacent grade. Openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded
movements of flood waters shall be provided in accordance with standards of
Section 5.1(5).

Drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwater around and away from any
proposed structure,

Standards for Subdivisions
All subdivision proposals shall identify the Areas of Special Flood Hazards
Hazardsspecial-flood-hazard-area and provide base flood elevation data and

future-conditions flood elevation data;

Page 24 of 30





El

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

All residential lots in a subdivision proposal shall have sufficient buildable area
outside of the future-conditions floodplain such that encroachments into the
future-conditions floodplain for residential structures will not be required;

All subdivision plans will provide the elevations of proposed structures in
accordance with Section 3.2.

All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood
damage;

All subdivision proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as water,
sanitary sewer, gas, and electrical systems located and constructed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters, and discharges from the systems into flood
waters; and,

All subdivision proposals shall include adequate drainage and stormwater
management facilities per the requirements of {urisdiction} Fayette County to
reduce potential exposure to flood hazards.

Section 6. Variance Procedures

The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been
denied a permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not
applied for a permit because it is clear that the proposed development activity would be
inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance. A request for a variance may be
submitted by an applicant who has been denied a permit by the {lecal-permitting
autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department, or by an owner or developer who
has not previously applied for a permit for the reasons stated herein above.

1)

()

Requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance shall be submitted

to the{localpermittingautherity) Fayette County Engineering Department. All

such requests shall be heard and decided in accordance with procedures to be
published in writing by the {local-permitting-authority) Fayette County
Engineering Department. At a minimum, such procedures shall include notice
to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.

Any person adversely affected by any decision of the (appointed board) Fayette
County Engineering Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to
the (apprepriate-court)-Planning Commission as established by
Gurisdietion)Fayette County in accordance with procedures to be published in
writing by the {appeointed-beard) Fayette County Planning Commission. At a
minimum, such procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the
opportunity to be heard.

Page 25 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

3) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the (appeinted-board) Fayette County
Planning Commission may appeal such decision to the{appropriate-court)
Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-4-1 of the Official Code
of Georgia Annotated.

4) Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of Historic structures upon
a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the
structure's continued designation as a Historic structure, and the variance issued
shall be the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of
the structure.

5) Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of a
functionally dependent use, provided the criteria of this Section are met, no
reasonable alternative exists, and the development is protected by methods that
minimize flood damage during the base flood and create no additional threats to
public safety.

(6) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in
flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

(7 In reviewing such requests, the {focal-permitting-authority) Fayette County
Engineering and {appeinted-board) Fayette County Planning Commission

shall consider all technical evaluations, relevant factors, and all standards
specified in this and other sections of this ordinance.

(8) Conditions for Variances:

@) A variance shall be issued only when there-is-all of the following

conditions are met:

Q) a finding of good and sufficient cause;

(i) adetermination that failure to grant the variance would result in
exceptional hardship; and,

(ili)  adetermination that the granting of a variance will not result in
increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety,
extraordinary public expense, or the creation of a nuisance.

(b) The provisions of this ordinance are minimum standards for flood loss
reduction; therefore, any deviation from the standards must be weighed
carefully. Variances shall only be issued upon determination that the
variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford
relief; and, in the instance of a Historic structure, a determination that the
variance is the minimum necessary so as not to destroy the historic
character and design of the building.

Page 26 of 30





El a4 0N Proy
OOt amageT1even T

o)
&
5

&
aq
D
d
a

(©) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice
specifying the difference between the base flood elevation and the
elevation of the proposed lowest floor and stating that the cost of flood
insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk to life and
property resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation.

(d) The {administrator) Fayette County Engineering Department shall
maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances to the
Federal Emergency Management Agency upon request.

9 Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time
the request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as the
Hocal-permitting-autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department and
{appointed-beard) Fayette County Planning Commission shall deem necessary
to the consideration of the request.

(10)  Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this
ordinance, the {lecal-permitting-autherity Fayette County Engineering
Department and the (appeinted-beard}Fayette County Planning Commission
may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as they deem necessary
or appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this ordinance.

(11)  Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.”

Section 7. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties

Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements
of an approved stormwater management plan or permit may be subject to the
enforcement actions outlined in this Section. Any such action or inaction which is
continuous with respect to time is deemed to be a public nuisance and may be abated by
injunctive or other equitable relief. The imposition of any of the penalties described
below shall not prevent such equitable relief. The imposition of any of the penalties
described below shall not prevent such equitable relief.

7.1.  Notice of Violation

If the Fayette County Engineering Department determines that an applicant or other
responsible person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an
approved stormwater management plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a
written notice of violation to such applicant or other responsible person. Where a person
is engaged in activity covered by this ordinance without having first secured a permit
therefore, the notice of violation shall be served on the owner or the responsible person in
charge of the activity being conducted on the site.

The notice of violation shall contain:

Page 27 of 30





El a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

1) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person;
@) The address or other description of the site upon which the violation is occurring;
3) A statement specifying the nature of the violation;

4) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction
into compliance with the permit, the stormwater management plan or this
ordinance and the date for the completion of such remedial action;

(5) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to
whom the notice of violation is directed; and,

(6) A statement that the determination of violation may be appealed to the {lecal
permitting-autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department by filing a
written notice of appeal within thirty (30) days after the notice of violation
(except, that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public
health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient).

7.2.  Penalties

In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been
completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or
more of the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to
whom the notice of violation was directed. Before taking any of the following actions or
imposing any of the following penalties, the {{ocal-permittingautherity) Fayette County
Engineering Department shall first notify the applicant or other responsible person in
writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable opportunity, of not less than
ten (10) days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to
public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure such violation.
In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such violation after
such notice and cure period, the {lecal-permittingautherity) Fayette County
Engineering Department may take any one or more of the following actions or impose
any one or more of the following penalties.

1) Stop Work Order -The {local-permitting-authority Fayette County Engineering
Department may issue a stop work order which shall be served on the applicant

or other responsible person. The stop work order shall remain in effect until the
applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in
the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation or violations described
therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified to enable the
applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to
cure such violation or violations.

2 Withhold Certificate of Occupancy - The {docal-permitting-authority) Fayette

County Building Department may refuse to issue a certificate of occupancy for
the building or other improvements constructed or being constructed on the site

Page 28 of 30





El

©)

(4)

(5)

Ordinance adopted on

By:

a4 0N Proy 41
OOt amage T Teverton

o)
&
5

D
d
a

until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set
forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described
therein.

Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit - The {lecal-permitting
autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department may suspend, revoke or
modify the permit authorizing the development project. A suspended, revoked or
modified permit may be reinstated after the applicant or other responsible person
has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has
otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such permit may be
reinstated (upon such conditions as the {(local-permitting-autherity) Fayette
County Engineering Department may deem necessary) to enable the applicant
or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure such
violations.

Civil Penalties - In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to
take the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to
cure the violations described therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period
as the Fayette County Engineering Department shall deem appropriate (except,
that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or
public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient) after the Fayette County
Engineering Department has taken one or more of the actions described above,
they may impose a penalty not to exceed $1,000 (depending on the severity of the
violation) for each day the violation remains-unremedied is not remediated after
receipt of the notice of violation.

Criminal Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, the

Hoecal-permitting-autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department may

issue a citation to the applicant or other responsible person, requiring such person
to appear in {appropriate-municipal,magistrate-orrecorders) Fayette County
State Court to answer charges for such violation. Upon conviction, such person
shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or imprisonment for 60 days or
both. Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation shall occur
shall constitute a separate offense.

Page 29 of 30





Ordina
ottt

Py 41
afmagerreventon

Certified by:

Date:

Page 30 of 30





		Engineering- Floodplain Agenda Request File.pdf

		Engineering- Floodplain Backup

		Engineering - Floodplain Backup One.pdf

		Section 1. General Provisions

		Section 2. Definitions

		Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements

		Section 4. Standards for Development

		Section 5. Provisions for Flood Damage Reduction

		Section 6. Variance Procedures 



		Engineering-  Floodplain Backup Two

		FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT / FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ORDINANCE

		Article IV.

		FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT / FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ORDINANCE

		Introduction

		Section 1. General Provisions

		Section 2. Definitions

		Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements

		Section 4. Standards for Development

		(1)   No development shall be allowed within the future-conditions floodplain that could result in any of the following:

		(a) Raising the base flood elevation or future-conditions flood elevation equal to or more than 0.01 foot;





		Section 5. Provisions for Flood Damage Reduction

		Section 6. Variance Procedures 








Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Engineering Department Head: ’Phil Mallon

Presenter, if needed: ’Nancy Howard Preferred Meeting Date: ’Wednesday,JuIy 2,2008

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's recommendation for changes to the "suggested planting materials" listed in Article V, Buffer and Landscape
Requirements, of the Fayette County Development Regulations.

Background/History/Details:

The suggested planting materials in Sections 8-157 and 8-161 of the Development Regulations lists several plant species that are
not appropriate for Fayette County's climate zone and/or are very susceptible to disease. In addition, some of the plants are
considered invasive and pose a threat to the natural areas of Georgia. The revised planting lists will omit the undesirable plant
species and includes only those plants suited to the climate of Fayette County, are known to be disease-resistant, and are not
considered invasive.

Sources for the revised list include the University of Georgia publications "Landscape Plants for Georgia" and "Xeriscape: A Guide to
Developing A Water-Wise Landscape." The draft revised list (attached) is currently being reviewed by several qualified horticultural
specialists in Fayette County.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval to proceed with suggested revisions to Article V of the Development Regulations. The Planning Commission will need to
hear this issue, followed by a public hearing before the Board of Commissioners.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Not applicable

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? [No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date |Wednesday, July 2, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New

Presentation Hearing Business Q Business ( Consent ( Report ( Other





ARTICLE V. BUFFER AND LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

Sec. 8-156. Purpose. The purpose of this Article is to establish minimum requirements
for landscape areas and buffers in Fayette County’s commercial (including Limited
Business), industrial, office-institutional, and multi-family zoning districts.  Said
requirements are designed to: improve the appearance of Fayette County’s commercial
and industrial corridors; minimize noise, glare, and erosion; provide a visual separation
between incompatible uses; and establish measures for water conservation. E.g., in a C-
C, C-H, M-1 and M-2 Zoning District where a lot abuts any residential or A-R Zoning
District, a buffer shall be provided as specified in the following sections of the Fayette
County Zoning Ordinance: 6-14 (D)(6) for C-C; 6-15 (D)(6) for C-H; 6-17(D)(6) for M-
1 and 6-18(D)(6) for M-2. Off street parking associated with such uses shall be governed
by such requirements within these Development Regulations.

Sec. 8-157. Landscape and Buffer Categories.

A. Street Frontage Landscape Areas. A landscape area shall be established along
the rights of way of add adjoining streets as specified under this Article. A
developer of property owner may substitute a planted buffer (greenbelt) as
specified under this Article in lieu of a landscape area.

B. Parking Lot Landscape Areas. Off-street parking lots shall be landscaped in
accordance with this Article. For the purpose of this Ordinance, an exterior
parking aisle shall refer to all parking aisles which adjoin a property line or a
required landscape area or buffer along a property line, and an interior parking
aisle shall refer to parking aisles which do not adjoin a property line, a
required buffer, or a building wall. Exterior and interior parking aisles shall
be terminated at both ends by a landscape island (three (3) feet in width by 20
feet in length, typical). Landscape islands shall be provided for each 150 feet
of continuous bay length.

C. Side Yard Landscape Areas. A landscape area shall be established along the
side property lines of all lots as specified under this Article. A developer or
property owner may substitute a planted buffer (greenbelt) as specified under
this section in lieu of a landscape area. However, where a side yard buffer is
required pursuant to other provisions of this Ordinance, a landscape area may
not be substituted therefor.

D. Buffer Areas (Greenbelt). Buffer areas required by this Ordinance shall be
established and maintained by the property owner subject to the requirements
listed below and those specified under this Article.

1. Listed below are suggested evergreen plant combinations
characteristic of buffer area plantings: New under canopy shrubs
required in buffer areas shall provide a visual screen to a minimum
height of four (4) feet upon planting, singularly or in combination with
various plant types.





§ 8-157 — 8-158

2.

Trees

Virginia Pine
Magnolia Southern Waxmyrtle vy
Red Cedar Devilwood Osmanthus Liriope

Groundcovers

Fruitland Eleagnus Wintercreeper

Burfordi Holly
Cleyera
Photinia

Buffer areas may include hardwood perenniab-plant materials.
Although it is not required that buffer areas be totally planted, such
areas must provide an evergreen visual screen from the ground to a
height of four (4) feet upon planting or supplemental planting, and
when so planted must include evergreen trees which will provide at
least 60% evergreen crown cover within three (3) years, assuming
normal weather conditions. Where required buffers adjoin
undeveloped property, the Zoning Administrator may specify less
mature plantings than those specified above.

Sec. 8-158. Landscape Plan Requirements. Landscape Plans must be submitted prior
to the issuance of Certificate of Zoning Compliance for any development project. Said
plans by be submitted as part of a Tree Protection Plan (TPP), as part of a Site Plan, or
separately. Ata minimum, said plan shall include:

A. The boundary lines of all buffer and landscape areas;

B. Locations of existing plant materials to be retained and/or new plant materials
to be installed, with all details drawn at a scale of one (1) inch to 100 feet or
greater.

C. A plant material list, which shall include:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Common and/or botanical names of all proposed plants.
Plant quantities.

Size and condition of plants. (Example: 1 Y% caliper, 8-foot height,
balled and burlapped).

Spacing.

Remarks as necessary to proper plant selection upon installation.

D. Project name and developer’s name and telephone number.




philipm

Polygon



philipm

Sticky Note

EXISTING






§ 8-159 - 8-160 DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

Sec. 8-159. Fayette County Landscape And Buffer Requirements.

TYPE SIZE OF AREA REQUIRED TREES* REQUIRED SHRUBS
LANDSCAPED | Number Height Number Height
Street Arterials: 20’ 1 per 20° 10° 7 per tree 2’
Collectors: 15’ 1 per 20’ 10’ 7 per tree 2’
Frontage Locals: 10’ 1 per 20’ 10’ 7 per tree 2’
Parking Exterior 1 per 30 6’ 5 per tree 2’
Aisles 10’
Lot _
Interior 1 per 30’ 6’ 5 per tree 2’
Aisles 7’
Buildings or 5 per 25 linear feet | 27
Walls 5’ of building wall.

(Excluding  walls
not visible from

street)

Landscage’: Islands | 1 per island 5 per island 2’
Side Yard Side Property | 1 per 40 6’ 3 per tree 2’

Lines 6°

Buffer O-I: 207 1 per 10’ 6’ As needed to

C-C.C-H 1 10° 6 provide visual
(Greenbelt) GO per Sereen

L-I 50° 1 per 10° 6’ 4

M-1, M-2 75 1 per 10 6’ 4’

*Trees to be uniformly distributed along useable area to be landscaped.
(ORD. No. 98-01, 8 1, 1-14-98)

Sec. 8-160. Other Requirements:

A. Groundcovers, flowers, stones, and mulch shall be utilized as needed to meet
coverage requirements.

B. Grass coverage shall not exceed 25 percent (25%) of required street frontage,
parking lot, and side yard landscape areas.

C. Islands shall be required at ends of interior parking aisles and per each 150
feet of continuous aisle length.

D. Required heights listed above shall be height at time of planting.

E. Landscape strips shall be provided for every other interior-parking isle.






F. Buffers are required where property adjoins residential or A-R Zoning
Districts. Evergreen trees are required in required buffers. Berms, and/or
opaque fences may be used to supplement required buffers. EXisting
vegetation shall not be removed.

G. Trees shall have a minimum caliper of one and one-half inches (1 %) at a
height of four feet (4) at time of planting.

H. Buffers and landscape areas fronting on County maintained roads shall be
measured for the right-of-way.

I. All disturbed areas not otherwise addressed in this Ordinance shall have a
vegetative ground cover for erosion control purposes.





Sec. 8-161. Planting Materials.

A. Xeriscape Requirements. All street frontage, parking lot, and side yard
landscape areas shall be planted with water-conserving groundcover and
vegetation. Other conservation measures are encouraged, including:

1. lrrigation systems which are electronically set for night and/or early
morning irrigation;

2. Designs which collect and recycle water; and

3. The minimization of overspray onto non-landscaped areas to avoid
wasting water.

B. Suggested Planting Materials.

1. Plants Which Are Native to Georgia

Trees Small Shrubs Large Shrubs
(1-8 feet) (8ft. & up)

Redbud/Judas Tree Sweet Shrub Oakleaf Hydrangea
Dogwood Mountain Laurel Myrtle Holly

Red Maple Flame Azalea Yaupon Holly
Southern Crabapple Florida Azalea Spanish Dagger
Sugar Maple Mound-Lily Yucca

Tuliptree

Southern Magnolia

Groundcovers Vines

Liriope Carolina Yellow Jessamine
Creeping Liriope Virginia Creeper
Adam’s Needle or Beargrass Lanceleaf Greenbrier or Smilax




philipm

Polygon



philipm

Sticky Note

EXISTING






2. Other Drought-Tolerant Plants

=

Trees Shrubs Flowers
Sycamore Forsythia Geraniums
Laurel Oak Abelia Gomphrena
Crape Myrtle Pampas Grass Rudbecia
Japanese Zelkas Japanese Barberry Daisies
Nandina Lantana Ageratum

Sec. 8-162. Prohibited Plants. No plants with vigorous root systems shall be planted
within any sanitary sewer or public water easement. Such plants include the following:

Eastern Cottonwood
Willow
Lombardy Poplar

Sec. 8-163. Performance Surety.

A. No occupancy permit shall be issued prior to complying with the
specifications of this Ordinance and all conditions of zoning.

B. Landscape Performance Surety. In the event that the requirements of this
Avrticle have not been met at the time that a Certificate of Occupancy could
otherwise be granted, the owner or his agent shall post a Landscape
Performance Bond or other County approved surety in an amount equal to 110
percent of the cost of materials, labor, and other attendant costs, incidental to
the installation of the required landscaping.

Said surety shall:
1. Bedrawn in favor of the Board of Commissioners.
2. Be in a form satisfactory to the County Attorney.
3. Specify the time for the completion of the landscaping requirements of
this Article which shall not be longer than six (6) months following the

issuance of a temporary Certificate of Occupancy.

Sec. 8-164. General Maintenance. Plants required pursuant to the provisions of this
Ordinance shall be attractively maintained. All dead and/or diseased plants shall be
replaced annually as a condition of occupancy.

Sec. 8-165 - 8-175. Reserved.



philipm

Polygon



philipm

Sticky Note

EXISTING





DRAFT

Suggested “Plant Material List” changes to the Fayette County Development
Regulations

Article V. Buffer and Landscape Requirements

Sec. 8-157. Landscape and Buffer Categories
D. Buffer Areas (Greenbelt)

1. Listed below are suggested evergreen plant combinations characteristic of buffer area
plants: New under canopy shrubs required in buffer areas shall provide a visual screen to
a minimum height of four (4) feet upon planting, singularly or in combination with
various plant types. Additional plant choices can be found at the Fayette County
Engineering Department’s website: http:www.fayettecountyga.gov/engineering.

Trees

Virginia Pine

Southern Magnolia
Red Cedar

Nellie R. Stevens Holly
Cryptomeria

Shrubs

Osmanthus
Burford Holly
Cleyera
Loropetalum
Yaupon Holly

Groundcovers

Euonymus Wintercreeper
Liriope

Asiatic Jasmine

Creeping Raspberry
Vinca



philipm

Polygon



philipm

Sticky Note

PROPOSED



philipm

Text Box

DRAFT





Sec. 8-161. Planting Materials
B. Suggested Planting Materials

1. Plants Which Are Native to Georgia

Trees

Redbud

Dogwood

Fringe Tree
Scarlet Oak
Overcup Oak

Red Maple

Bald Cypress
Southern Magnolia

Small Shrubs (1-8 feet)

Virginia Sweetspire
Sweet Shrub

Florida Azalea
Mound-Lily Yucca
Dwarf Yaupon Holly
Inkberry Holly
Clethra

Large Shrubs (8 ft. & up)

Oakleaf Hydrangea
Devilwood Osmanthus
Yaupon Holly
Yucca/Spanish Dagger
Southern Wax Myrtle
Small Anise-Tree

Groundcovers
Liriope

Creeping Liriope
Yucca/Adams’s Needle





Vines

Swamp Jessamine
Carolina Yellow Jessamine
Crossvine

Trumpet Honeysuckle

2. Other Suitable Plants

Trees

Trident Maple
Chinese Pistache
Legacy Sugar Maple
Shumard Oak
Willow Oak

Red Oak

Lacebark EIm
Japanese Zelkova
Crape Myrtle

Shrubs

Beautyberry
Forsythia

Abelia

Japanese Barberry
Holly

Juniper

Perennials

Daylily

Rudbeckia
Coneflower

Yarrow

Sedum

Daisy

‘Miss Huff’” Lantana

3. In addition to those listed above, acceptable plant choices can be found at the
Fayette County Engineering Department’s website:
http:www.fayettecountyga.gov/engineering










		Engineering- Plant List Agenda Request File.pdf

		Engineering- Plant List Backup

		Article 5 - Buffer and Landscape Requirements.pdf

		Development Reg 's Plant List










Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Planning & Zoning/Community Dev. Department Head: ’Peter A. Frisina

Presenter, if needed: ’Pete Frisina/Robyn Wilson Preferred Meeting Date: ’Wednesday,JuIy 2,2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Consideration of staff's request that the current Alcoholic Beverage Application document and Personnel Statement document be
revised.

Background/History/Details:

The P&Z Staff initiated the review of the currently used Alcoholic Beverage Application documents and the Personnel Statement
documents to make them more customer-friendly and less cumbersome and confusing for applicants seeking alcohol licenses.
Numerous revisions are being recommended in both documents. The revised Alcoholic Beverage Application form has questions
designated for a New Location only, a Change of Ownership only, and/or both. The revised Renewal Alcoholic Beverage Application
form only required minor revisions. The most cumbersome items deleted from the Personnel Statement were: Employment History
for 10 years, Residential History for 10 years, and Personal References for 10 years. The recommended revised documents are similar
to the applications for the City of Fayetteville and the City of Peachtree City. These documents have been reviewed by Attorney
Bennett for compliance with the County Code and State Law.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

The Planning and Zoning staff is ultimately seeking approval of revisions to the Alcoholic Beverage Application form and the
Personnel Statement form for renewal requests. If the Board desires to approve staff's recommendations, this item should be
placed on the Board's next meeting agenda.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

N/A

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? [No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date |Wednesday, July 2, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New

Presentation Hearing Business Q Business ( Consent ( Report ( Other





Deletions indicated as strikethreugh. Additions indicated as bold, italics, and underline.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE APPLICATION
FOR NEW LOCATION OR CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY:

Date Received: ,20 TYPE OF LICENSE:
Retail
Pouring
Appreved-as-to-tormby:
Date: 240 Fee Enclosed

State License No.:

Bd. of Comm. Action:

Approved ,20
Denied ,20
Local License No.:
Land Lot(s): District(s):

Zoning of Property:

Business License-Admin- Approved by

Date approved
Fayette County, Georgia

Check One: New Location: Change of Ownership:

ORIGINAL APPLICATION FOR COUNTY LICENSE AS DEALER/OPERATOR
RETAIL IN VINOUS LIQUORS (WINE) SALES

RETAIL IN MALT LIQUORS (BEER) SALES

ON PREMISE CONSUMPTION OF MALT LIQUORS (BEER)

ON PREMISE CONSUMPTION OF VINOUS LIQUORS (WINE)

ON PREMISE CONSUMPTION OF DISTILLED SPIRITS (ALCOHOL)





INSTRUCTIONS: Read through entire application before answering any questions.
EVERY questions and sub-question must be fully and completely answered. If a
particular question does not apply to you, then answer “N/A” and if necessary explain
why it is not applicable to you. Do not leave any questions blank. If the space provided
is not sufficient, answer the question on a separate sheet and indicate in the space
provided that such separate sheet is attached. When the form is completed, it must be
dated, signed and verified under oath by the applicant and filed with the BusinessLicense
Administrator Fayette County Planning & Zoning Department, Fayette County,
Georgia, together with all supporting papers, one complete copy, and money order or
certified check for the exact fee. Personal checks will not be accepted. A copy of the
relevant alcoholic beverage ordinance is available for your use.

1. (a) Full name, address & legal residence of person making application.
Name:
Address:
Resident of: City County State
Zip Code

(b) Is the above address your legal and bona fide place of domicile?

(c) How long have you lived at the above address?

(d) Please list all legal addresses and residences for the last ten (10) years, and
state the length of time you resided there. (attach separate sheet if
necessary)

Address City County State ftyears
residence

2. Trade name of business for which license is requested:






Location of business for which license is requested:

Address:

Telephone Number:

Mailing Address:
(if different from above)

Name and residence of each person, partnership and corporation having any
ownership interest in the business, and the amount of such interest.

Name Address Residence Interest
Name Address Residence Interest
Name Address Residence Interest

(a) Will this business be owned by the applicant as a sole proprietorship?
Yes No

(b) If this business will be owned in whole or in part by a partnership,
corporation or any other association, list the members of such organization
and give their address, county and state of their legal residence, and the
amount of their interest.

Name Address Residence Interest

Name Address Residence Interest

Name Address Residence Interest





6. How much of the capital of this business is borrowed and from whom? (attach
exhibits if necessary)

Amount Lender Address

Amount Lender Address

7 Does any person or organization listed in questions (1), (4), (5), or (6) have any
financial interest whatsoever in any other business selling distilled spirits, wine or
beer, either in this state or any other state? Yes No If se yes, list the
name of such person or organization, the name and location of such other
business, and the amount and type of interest.

8 (a) Is the applicant and/or license holder the owner of the building where

business is to be conducted?  Yes No

(b) Is the applicant and/or license holder the owner of the land where business
is to be conducted? Yes No

(c) If your answer is “No” to either question, state whether you lease,
sublease, or rent the building and whether you lease, sublease, or rent the
land, or both.

9 (a) State the full name and address of the owner of the building, the name and
address of the owner of the land, and the name and address of all lessors
and/or sublessors. Attach copies of all lease agreements as exhibits to
question 9.

Building Owner Address Relationship to
applicant or any
other owners

Land Owner Address Relationship to

applicant or any
other owners





Other

(b)

Address Relationship to
applicant or any
other owners

Has the applicant and/or license holder entered into an agreement or
contract with either the owner, lessor or sublessor for either the building or
the land or both which provides for the payment of rent on a percentage or
profit sharing basis? Yes No

If “yes”, please list the terms of such agreement or contract, and attach a
copy of such agreement or contract if in written form. (State owner,
lessor, or sublessor and the building, the land, or both).

Ouestion 10. to be completed for New Location Application Only:

10.

1.

12

What is the distance from the nearest building wall of the business, along the
closest and most reasonable public access, to the nearest point of the following:

(a)
)
©
(d)
(e)

School Ground

Church Ground

Residence

Alcoholic Treatment Center

Library

Excepting the front entrance, describe each entrance and exit to or from your
place of business, and any passageways between your place of business and any
adjacent place of business.

Name the manager of the business for which this application is filed and state how
he is compensated.

Name

Address





13.

14.

15.

Compensation:
Checkone:  Salary _ Hourly _ Commission _ Comb. of any 3

List all other liquor, beer or wine businesses that your general manager is
interested in, employed by, or associated with, in any way whatsoever.

Name Address

Liquor, beer or wine business name Type of interest and amount

Does any non-resident of the State of Georgia have any financial interest in the
operation of this business? Yes No
If se yes, list such non-resident’s legal name and address and amount of interest.

Name Address Interest

Name Address Interest

List all employees of this business involved in serving, pouring, or bartending
positions, or in cashier positions. List all ewners, managers and/or supervisors.
Note: Applies only to the particular business for which this license application is
made. A Personnel Statement shall be required for each person listed. (attach
exhibits if necessary)

Name Position Name Position

Name Position Name Position

Ouestion 16. to be completed for Change of Ownership Application only.

1.

If you acquired this business or propose to acquire it from some previous licensee,
give the name of the previous licensee, the State License Number of the previous
license, and the date acquired or to be acquired.






b 8

18.

19.

Has any place of business engaged in the sale of distilled spirits, wine or beer with
which you have been associated ever been cited or charged at any time with any
violation of federal, state, county, or municipal law, or any rule, regulation or

ordinance, concerning the sale of such products? Yes No
Authority issuing citation Violation alleged Results
Authority issuing citation Violation alleged Results

Did the applicant or any person listed in questions 4, 5(b), or 6 have any interest
in any business engaged in the sale of distilled spirits during the preceding
calendar year? Yes No

If se yes, state:

Name Address Interest

Name Address Interest

(a) List the name of the spouse of any person mentioned in questions 1, 4, or
5(b) who has any interest whatsoever in any business selling distilled
spirits other than the business for which this application is made.

Name Address Interest

(b) List the name of the father, mother, brother, sister, son, or daughter, or the
spouse of any such relative, of any person mentioned in questions 1, 4, or
5(b) who has any interest whatsoever in any business selling distilled
spirits other than the business for which this application is made.

Name Address Interest

Name Address Interest





20.

21.

22,

45,

Read and complete the following:

There must be submitted with this application, as Exhibits A-1, A-2, etc., a
personnel statement from the applicant and from each person listed in questions 4,
5,12, and 15. Such personnel statements shall be deemed to be incorporated into
and made a part of this application, and any false statement in this application or
in any such personnel statement shall constitute cause for the revocation of any

license issued pursuant to this application. Number of personnel statements
attached:

As to the applicant, if an individual, and as to the managing officer or partner, if a
corporation or partnership, there must be attached to this application as Exhibit B
an affidavit by some person having knowledge of the facts concerning the
residence of such applicant, managing officer or partner for the past ten years.
Check here that such affidavit is attached.

There must be attached hereto, as Exhibit D, documentation proving residence of
the applicant in the State of Georgia for twelve (12) months preceding the year for
which application is made. Such documentation can include copies of a county
tax bill showing a homestead exemption, a lease agreement, a deed, or some
identification showing an address. Check here that such documentation is
attached.

Ouestion 24. is for New Location Application Only.

24,

There must be attached to this application as Exhibit E a certificate from a
registered surveyor, as required by the Code of Ordinances of Fayette County
relating to the sale and distribution of alcoholic beverages, showing the distances
from this place of business to the nearest residence, school ground, church

ground, alcoholic treatment center, and library. Check here that such exhibit is
attached.





15,

26.

Z1.

28.

There must be attached, as Exhibit F, approved building/site plans (on file in the
Fayette County Permits & Inspections Department; and plans showing seating
and bulldlng requlrements as approved bv the Favette County Fire Marshal

basmess—heeﬂse—aéﬂa%sﬁa%er— Check here that such exh1b1t 18 attached

Should any change occur during the year for which a license is issued pursuant to
this application which would require a different answer to any questions
contained in this application, or any personnel statement which is made a part of
this application, such change must be reported to the business—license
administrator Fayette County Planning & Zoning Department within ten (10)
days. The failure to make such report shall be cause for the revocation of any
license issued pursuant to this application. Initial belew to indicate that this is
fully understood.

Please initial each following paragraph if you have read it, understand it, and
agree with the information contained therein.

(a) I agree to abide by all laws, rules and regulations of the United States, the
State of Georgia and Fayette County, either now in force or hereafter
promulgated or enacted, regulating and governing the sale of alcoholic
beverages and liquors.

(b) 1 understand that any license issued shall be valid from the date of
issuance or the first day of January of each subsequent year, and shall
expire December 31, in the year issued. [ also understand that no license
shall be assignable or transferable, nor shall the holder thereof be entitled
to a rebate of the license fee or any portion thereof by reason of revocation
of said license or for any other reason.

(c) As applicant and/or license holder, I have read the Ordinance governing
the sale of beer, wine, or other alcoholic beverages, and all amendments
thereto, in Fayette County, Georgia.

Complete and initial the following statement if you have read and understand it.

I submit herewith the sum of § dollars as payment in full of the investigation
fee, with the understanding that if for any reason the license shall not be granted, the
investigation fee will not be refunded.

(Initial)





NOTE: BEFORE SIGNING THIS APPLICATION, CHECK ALL ANSWERS
AND EXPLANATIONS TO SEE THAT YOU HAVE ANSWERED ALL
QUESTIONS FULLY AND CORRECTLY. THIS APPLICATION IS TO BE
EXECUTED UNDER OATH, IS SUBJECT TO THE PENALTIES OF FALSE
SWEARING, AND INCLUDES ALL ATTACHED SHEETS SUBMITTED
HEREWITH. APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS THAT ANY LICENSE ISSUED
PURSUANT TO THIS APPLICATION IS CONDITIONED UPON THE TRUTH
OF THE ANSWERS AND STATEMENTS MADE HEREIN, AND ANY FALSE
OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENT OR ANSWER WITHIN THIS APPLICATION
OR ATTACHMENTS THERETO SHALL CONSTITUTE CAUSE FOR THE
SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF ANY LICENSE ISSUED PURSUANT TO
THIS APPLICATION.

VERIFICATION

STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY

I, , applicant, do solemnly

swear, subject to criminal penalties for false swearing, that the statements and answers
made by me to the foregoing questions in this application for a Fayette County license as
a dealer in alcoholic beverages and/or liquors are true, and no false or fraudulent

statement or answer is made therein to procure the granting of such license.

Applicant’s Signature (Full Name in Ink)






This day of

(AFFIX SEAL)

, 20

NOTARY PUBLIC





Deletions indicated as strikethrough. Additions indicated as bold, italics, and underline.

APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE
Fayette County, Georgia

APPLI CANT MUST SUBMIT THE COMPLETED ORIGINAL
ANDB-ONE-COPY-OFR S APPHCATON

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY:

Date Received: , 20 TYPE OF LICENSE:
Retail:

Approved-asto Pouring:

faorm hye Nata- 20

TUOTITT UJ’- pe=g = n E) r=pv

State License No.: Fee Enclosed:

Local License No.: Approved: , 20
Denied: o)
Bus: T .
Approved by:

Date approved:

Fayette County, Georgia

RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR COUNTY LICENSE AS DEALER/OPERATOR

Check all that apply

RETAIL IN VINOUS LIQUOR SALES (WINE):
RETAIL I N MALT LIQUOR SALES (BEER):
ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION OF MALT LIQUORS (BEER):

ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION OF VINOUS LIQUORS (WINE):

ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION OF DISTILLED SPIRITS (ALCOHOL):

1. General Information of Business and Applicant

Business Making Renewal

NAME OF BUSINESS NAME OF APPLICANT

STREET NUMBER ORP-O-BOX PHONE NUMBER OF APPLICANT

CITY, STATE ZIP CODE APPLICANT’S SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER
SEX: F M

PHONE NUMBER OF BUSINESS





2 Has any evenl occurred which would cause a change in any of the responses given on last year's business
Alcolielic License application? NO YES
{Said changes include a change in ownership siructure, management, financing, history of violation of Federal,
Stale, Local, or other law, residence of applicant, etc.)

If ves, explain:

3. Criminal History Consent Form

L. , hereby consent to a criminal background check,
APPLICANT

run by the Fayette County Sheriff's Department, to investigate my criminal history. T understand that renewal

of the alcoholic beverage license for the above property is conditioned upon the results of said investigation.

4, Attached hereto are personnel statements, completed and verified, for the applicant; each person,
partnership, or corporation having greater than 2.5% ownership in the business; the members of any
partnership, corporation, or other association possessing greater than 2.5% ownership in the business;
all managers of the business and all employees of the business involved in the serving, pouring,
bartending, or cashiering of sales for alcoholic beverages.

Number of Statements are attached hereto,

I understand that a statement must be included for each party named above regardless of change or
lack thereof from a prior year's personnel statement. Initial here

5. VERIFICATION
STATE OFF GEORGIA, COUNTY.
IR , do solemnly swear, subject to criminal penalties for

NAME OF APPLICANT
false swearing, that the statements and answers made by me to the foregoing questions in this renewal application for a

Fayette County license as a dealer in alcoholic beverages and/or liquors are true, and no false or fraudulent statement

or answer 1s made therein (o procure the granting of such license.

knevw—andunderstoad-ab-slate

that-said-statements-and-GREW e are-Hrae;





g

Vhis day of

(AFFIX SEAL)

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:






Deletions indicated as a strikethrough. Additions/changes indicated in bold, italics, and
underline.

ATTACHMENT A-
FULL PERSONNEL STATEMENT

Please read each item in its entirety and respond appropriately. Unless otherwise
indicated, reference to any other application or statement is inappropriate.

Ia

Full Name:

Maiden Name, if any:

Street Address:

City, State, Zip Code:

Home Telephone Number:

Social Security Number:

Name of business for which this application is made:

Telephone Number of business for which this application is made:

Indicate your employment position in this business (owner, co-owner, manager,

or specific employee position):

Do you hold an ownership interest of 2.5% or greater in this business?

Yes No

If so, state the amount and type o f that interest and the amount thereof:






Sex Age

Weight

Height

10.

Color of Eyes

Color of hair

Race

rth-

1

Ctata and (At AP

Clitaz

11

T

vt

1

A L A n P A R AR S S A R e e e

Date of R
=Zate- ot

f1nn-

1z

Pate Placno and (At AL N ntienl]

DOy T oo oo oot O T Yyaton anZatiorn

Countrye

a

PSR E= S B~ \_/UUJII-JJ(-

Nat

ta-tha 1S .

A

Dot and Pawt ~Af Rt

$190 N -
I WIS

1

Pat

fHeata Nao -

1

DPerived Parante (CortiFiaatas N (o)
DTy oo 1T arciity oertrireatcovoR o),

Ut UV I oTo Ul J_Allll_)’ INITOU LIV OO

Cortrrrocato N o

Cert

1an Raotctratian Na -

Al

ITETITVIT 1\\4510!.1!4!.1\311 TN
Dateand Part af Extry 1t~ tha [T Q .
DaivOITa T Orc or j_allLLJ TITTEO LI O,y

Native Countis
Nathy oty

Manthc
ITVIOTITILY

Y aatra
ears






17.

18.

Within the ten (10) years immediately preceding the date of the signing of this

application, have you been convicted of a felony, or any violation of the laws of

this state, any other state or of the United States relating to the sale of alcoholic

beverages? o

wvebrinpmoral furpitade? Yes No

If yes, explam:

Are you an elected or appointed officer, agent or employee of Fayette County?






1 dataile
T O S v oo Oty

134

1Ifco o

Emnlovear:
LILIHIUJ A2 8

inace Strant A Jdracc-
FOJTTT I N WU T T AdUT VT,

Biic

an“ﬂ'

13y

Qinta and 7

inace Straat A ddracc:

Capxr

City; ottt dhaAip-coaes
Emnlavar:

EHpOYeE

Buc

DOV OOtV T 1 TAaTOr e ogs

Code:

triy Qtata A d i

1

C

OaTT

(22 easmr =2y v

TITY Tty





Emnlasar:
THproy e

1 CQtrant A ddracc:
DOoIICoyy I oo T 7 YOO ooy,

EECWaTalal

Bnc

Qtnta and T (C~da-

Clity

Ty et IO 2o T OO

Em“1n‘7@‘|’"
EHPoyCr

Qiennt A dd=nace

1aco

BRuc

LA JITINSS DTV TGN Oy

Qtnta ard i A,

1txr

C

A= PR Al a I e s EAs g =2y A S A A

Qirant A ddraca:

Dot raarTooT

Coda:

1y

Qtnta and 7

Clity

\.ril")” ey, T l_zll.) A VA

Qtreet-Addrace:
otFCOT e GUTCosT

Cade:

11y

Stnta and 7
Ul‘j, ULLLI'\Jj AT l_JLtJ AL WA A Ny

1t s

C






Qtraat A Jdracc-
L= A% Al S R WA S ¥ B T T

Qinta nmd T (A dg.

Clatss

A=A P A =R S A Y e A A

Straat-Addrece:
e g5 R viving mus vy S vTe e

Cade:

113

Qtnta and 7

Citss

Ty ottty dnaT oo oats

MNameas

TNUTITINT

T

Qiroatr A ddrace:
[SEAS R LT P g e LW Y g T T

m Cada

Qtnta 7

Catar

\/ILJ‘, UL, l_JltJ R AY 3

Emnlayvar:
Byt

Caode:

113
\/ll..j, Uty I_dliJ AL WL A

Stata 7

Citss

Vanre K nnum:

T OOy IOy Ity

MNamas

TNOITIVY

r=r)

Strant A ddvrace.
[SASRviviars suyesg =T

Qitnta Tinm Cades

Cifss

=T I..J s =~ I.MI,V?_‘IIJ AL WA & iy

BEinloaar:
P y o

Coda-

11y

Qtata 7

Catas

=T L)’, LIRSy l_-lllJ' AR A

N Qarc V“f‘“fﬂ‘
T A0t





TNTITIGS

Alamas

Ctprnat A ddwncc:
VLT IIOUT Vg,

Qtnta Fim Cada-
\_IILJ) L}I.ul.\f, I_IAP AL LS A ey

Ctss

Emnloyvar:
TPy el

Qintn T (adn.
oIty otate oottty

1f3z

C

A1 =% e us NS B AW B

Yasre Knovn:

r Y

RanconCharced-ar Hald:

INCQOUITT uxxmbvu AR G G R ) A o

Pate-

p =g w o

Plarce Whaora (Charoad-

TIow

WA AR AA =2 2 ion w i o

t1an.

ERal e Pavall

D

D'FDIJU\JILLU]..I.-





Attach a color copy of vour valid drivers license or a photo taken by the Fayette
County Marshal’s Office.

Attach Photograph/Snapshot Here





NOTE: Before signing this statement, check all answers and explanations to see that you
have answered all questions fully and correctly. This statement is to be executed under
oath and subject to the penalties of false swearing, and it includes all attached sheets
submitted herewith.

VERIFICATION
STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY.
i , do solemnly swear, subject to

Applicant's name
the penalties for false swearing, that the statements and answers made by me as the

applicant in the foregoing personnel statement are true.

Date Applicant’s Signature
(full name and in ink)

1Lherehs: cartifsr that
T oo y SOyttt

This day of , 20

(AFFIX SEAL)

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires:






		Planning and Zoning- Alcohol ... Form Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Alcohol Application and Personnel Form Backup




Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Planning & Zoning/Comm. Dev. Department Head: ’Peter A. Frisina

Presenter, if needed: ’Tom Williams/Pete Frisina Preferred Meeting Date: ’Wednesday,JuIy 2,2008

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of proposed amendments to the Land Use Element of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan regarding the S.R. 54
West Overlay District as presented by the Planning & Zoning Department.

Background/History/Details:

SR 54 W Overlay District, adopted 1995, 3 rezoning requests to O-I for lots in recorded residential subdivisions,1 approved (963-97)
and 2 denied (994-98 and 1201-07). Staff proposing to amend SR 54 W Overlay District section of Land Use Element of Comp. Plan
to clarify County's position for rezoning in recorded resid s/d. 03/05/08 BOC Wkshop, BOC instructed to review. 03/20/08 PC
Wkshop, Staff - lots in platted resid. s/d oriented to and access to SR 54 W from 1 or more internal streets and any lot less than 5
acres and surrounded on side/rear by platted recorded resid. s/d not be considered for O-l. Lots 5 acres or more could be
considered to O-l with additional s/backs and buffers. PC - all lots in platted resid. s/d should not be given consideration for O-l but
lots surrounded on sides/rear by platted s/d should be given consideration for O-I. Staff/PC compromise - all lots in platted resid.
s/d and lots surrounded fully on side/rear by platted resid. s/d should not be given consideration for O-l. 04/02/08 BOC Wkshop,
BOC concurred with Staff's original amendment and instructed Staff to advertise for May Public Hearings. Tabled until June, 2008.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Final Vote

THE P.C. RECOMMENDED APPROVAL TO RECOMMENDATION #1 WITH REVISIONS 4-1. THE P.C. RECOMMENDED DELETING
RECOMMENDATION #2 IN ITS ENTIRETY 5-0.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

N/A

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |Wednesday, April 2, 2008

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |Yes Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

(e Finance Review Complete (e Purchasing Review Complete
(¢ Legal Review Complete (e Administrative Staff Review Complete
Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date |Wednesday, July 2, 2008
Recognition/ Public Old New

Presentation 0 Hearing C Business C Business C Consent C Report ( Other





Workshop Minutes
April 2, 2008
Page Number 2

D. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Land Use Element of the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan regarding the SR54 West Overlay District as presented by the Planning and
Zoning Department. This item was last discussed during the March 5, 2008 Wednesday Workshop
Meeting

Mr. Pete Frisina discussed the proposed amendments as requested. Some discussion followed. It was the
Board's consensus that the proposed amendments should not give parcels within a platted residential
subdivision consideration for O- zoning if the subdivision is oriented lo SR 54 and accesses SR 54, but
should give parcels in a platted residential subdivision consideration for O-| zoning if the subdivision is not
oriented to SR 54 and does not access SR 54. The Board added that it wanted the proposed amendments
to address grealer setbacks, buffers or other measures hat would lessen the impact on adjacent residential
properties. The Board then directed Mr. Frisina to make the changes as discussed to the proposed
amendments and move ahead with public hearings in May. A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.





03/05/08 — Instructed by BOC to review Ordinance
03/20/08 — PC Wkshop

04/02/08 — BOC Wkshop

05/01/08 — PC Public Hearing (tabled)

05/15/08 — PC Wkshop

06/05/08 — PC Public Hearing

06/26/08 — BOC Public Hearing

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE
FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
REGARDING THE S.R. 54 WEST OVERLAY DISTRICT

Transportation Corridors

Over the next twenty years, a number of state routes in Fayette County are scheduled to
be widened from a two-lane highway to a four-lane divided highway. These state routes
are the connecting corridors for the incorporated municipalities in Fayette County and
neighboring counties. With few exceptions, in the unincorporated areas of the county,
these roads traverse residential and/or agricultural land uses.

With the widening of these state routes comes the increased pressure for nonresidential
development. The County is now in the position where it must balance this demand with
its own growth and transportation policies. These state routes are first and foremost
transportation corridors; the efficient flow of traffic must be maintained. Nonresidential
land uses are indicated on the Land Use Plan Map where their location and intensity are
most appropriate for the surrounding area.

In order to better facilitate the desired development along its transportation corridors,
Fayette County has adopted an Overlay District on SR 54 and several Overlay Zones.
The particular requirements pertaining to these transportation corridors are discussed
below.

SR 54 West Overlay District: With the widening of SR 54 West, the Board of
Commissioners adopted the SR 54 West Overlay District. This District identifies the
county’s goals and recommendations for the corridor and sets out the desired
development pattern. SR 54 connects the communities of Fayetteville and Peachtree
City, and serves as the only major east-west thoroughfare through the county. The
following section defines the District.

Existing Development: Existing residential development is scattered along the SR 54
West Corridor. Residential tracts range in size from large agricultural tracts of as much
as 200 acres down to minimum one (1) acre subdivisions. Large tracts are still used for
agricultural purposes and may or may not contain a single-family residence. These tracts
vary in size from approximately five (5) to 200 acres. The majority of the larger tracts are





located between Sandy Creek and Tyrone Roads. Single-family residential development
consists of smaller lots, varying in size from one (1) to five (5) acres, fronting on SR 54
West or within subdivisions which access SR 54 West. Three single-family residential
subdivisions (Newton Estates, Fayette Villa, and The Landings) are developed in this
area. These subdivisions are zoned for one (1) acre minimum lots. Fayette Villa and The
Landings are located between Flat Creek Trail west to Sumner Road (north) on the north
side of SR 54 West. Newton Estates is located west of Huiet Drive on the south side of
SR 54 West. Existing nonresidential development consists of two (2) commercial
areas, one (1) at Tyrone Road and one at Sumner Road (south),

Future Development: SR 54 West is first and foremost a transportation corridor. The
efficient flow of traffic must be maintained. High intensity nonresidential uses should be
targeted to the major intersection with Tyrone Road and SR 54 West. As one moves
away from this node, the intensity of nonresidential development should decrease. The
goals of the SR 54 West Overlay District are: (1) to maintain the efficient traffic flow of
SR 54 West as the County’s only major east-west thoroughfare; (2) to maintain a non-
urban separation between Fayetteville and Peachtree City; and (3) to protect existing and
future residential areas in the SR 54 West Corridor.

If lots, which front on SR 54 West, are allowed to change from a residential use to a
nonresidential use, care must be taken to protect existing or future residential property.
This can be accomplished by requiring enhanced landscaping, buffers and berms to
protect these residential areas.

Recommendations: The intent of the SR 54 West Overlay District is to offer existing
tracts of five +/- acres the option to convert to office uses. Outside of the commercial
designation at Tyrone Road and the commercial and office-institutional designation at
Sumner Road (south), these parcels would be considered for the Office-Institutional
Zoning District. Conditions should be placed on property at the time of rezoning to
address unique situations such as a lot adjacent to a residential subdivision where berms
and fences could be required, as well as, an increase in the buffer.

(STAFF RECOMMENDATION)

In_certain situations a change from a residential zoning to the Office-Institutional
Zoning District should not be given consideration due to the impact on abutting
residential property in platted and recorded subdivisions. These situations include, but
are not limited to the following:

1. Parcels platted and recorded in a residential subdivision where the
residential subdivision is oriented to and has access to SR54 from one or
more internal streets.

2. Any lot that is less than five (5) acres and is surrounded on side and rear lot
lines by a platted and recorded residential subdivision or subdivisions.
Parcels of at least five (5) acres could be considered in that additional






sethacks and buffers could be required as a condition of zoning while
leaving adequate area for development.

(PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION)

In certain situations a change from a residential zoning to the Office-Institutional
Zoning District showld will not be given consideration due to the impact on abutting
residential property in platted and recorded subdivisions. These situations include, but
are not limited to the following:

1. Parcels platted and recorded in a residential subdivision where the
residential subdivision is—ertented—to-andtras—accessto borders SR54 firom

Other Transportation Corridors: Section 7-6 Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone of
the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance establishes Overlay Zones on state highways that
traverse Fayette County. Regardless of the underlying zoning, any new nonresidential
development along these corridors must meet the requirements of the particular Overlay
Zone. The Zoning Ordinance establishes Overlay Zones on SR 54 West and SR 74
South, SR 85 North, and a General State Route Overlay Zone on all other state routes.






Page 1
June 5, 2008
PC Public Hearing

6. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Land Use Element of the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan regarding the S.R. 54 West Overlay District as presented by the
Planning & Zoning Department. /nstructed by BOC on 03/05/08 to begin review.

Chairman Powell advised that the P.C. had held several Workshops to discuss the proposed
amendments, He added that the proposed amendments had been discussed at a Public Hearing;
however, the P.C. decided to table the vote to allow further discussion.

Pete Frisina stated that the proposed amendments had been discussed by the BOC. He confirmed
that there had been three (3) rezonings of properties on S.R. 54 West in a residential platted
subdivision; however, one (1) was approved and two (2) were denied. He said that Staff needed to
clarify the policy since there were inconsistencies. He stated that there was discussion about
rezoning lots in a platted residential subdivision and lots surrounded by platted residential
subdivisions. He reported that the BOC also wanted policies that a berm, fencing, or an increased
buffer could be required as a condition of zoning when a lot adjacent to a platted residential
subdivision petitions to rezone to a nonresidential zoning.

The proposed amendments are as follows:

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE
FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
REGARDING THE S.R. 54 WEST OVERLAY DISTRICT

Transportation Corridors

Over the next twenty years, a number of state routes in Fayette County are scheduled to be widened
from two-lane highways to four-lane divided highways. These state routes are the connecting
corridors for the incorporated municipalities in Fayette County and neighboring counties. With few
exceptions, in the unincorporated areas of the county, these roads traverse residential and/or
agricultural land uses.

With the widening of these state routes comes the increased pressure for nonresidential development.
The County is now in the position where it must balance this demand with its own growth and
transportation policies. These state routes are first and foremost transportation corridors; the
efficient flow of traffic must be maintained. Nonresidential land uses are indicated on the Land Use
Plan Map where their location and intensity are most appropriate for the surrounding area.

In order to better facilitate the desired development along its transportation corridors, Fayette County
has adopted an Overlay District on SR 54 and several Overlay Zones. The particular requirements
pertaining to these transportation corridors are discussed below.





Page 2
June 5, 2008
PC Public Hearing

SR 54 West Overlay District: With the widening of SR 54 West, the Board of Commissioners
adopted the SR 54 West Overlay District. This District identifies the county’s goals and
recommendations for the corridor and sets out the desired development pattern. SR 54 connects the
communities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City, and serves as the only major east-west thoroughfare
through the county. The following section defines the District.

Existing Development: Existing residential development is scattered along the SR 54 West
Corridor. Residential tracts range in size from large agricultural tracts of as much as 200 acres down
to minimum one (1) acre subdivisions. Large tracts are still used for agricultural purposes and may
or may not contain a single-family residence. These tracts vary in size from approximately five (5) to
200 acres. The majority of the larger tracts are located between Sandy Creek and Tyrone Roads.
Single-family residential development consists of smaller lots, varying in size from one (1) to five (5)
acres, fronting on SR 54 West or within subdivisions which access SR 54 West. Three single-
family residential subdivisions (Newton Estates, Fayette Villa, and The Landings) are developed in
this area. These subdivisions are zoned for one (1) acre minimum lots. Fayette Villa and The
Landings are located between Flat Creek Trail west to Sumner Road (north) on the north side of SR
54 West. Newton Estates is located west of Huiet Drive on the south side of SR 54 West. Existing
nonresidential development consists of two commercial areas, one at Tyrone Road and one at
Sumner Road (south).

Future Development: SR 54 West is first and foremost a transportation corridor, The efficient flow
of traffic must be maintained. High intensity nonresidential uses should be targeted to the major
intersection with Tyrone Road and SR 54 West. As one moves away from this node, the intensity of
nonresidential development should decrease. The goals of the SR 54 West Overlay District are: (1)
to maintain the efficient traffic flow of SR 54 West as the County’s only major east-west
thoroughfare; (2) to maintain a non-urban separation between Fayetteville and Peachtree City; and
(3) to protect existing and future residential areas in the SR 54 West Corridor.

If lots, which front on SR 54 West, are allowed to change from a residential use to a nonresidential
use, care must be taken to protect existing or future residential property. This can be accomplished
by requiring enhanced landscaping, buffers and berms to protect these residential areas.

Recommendations: The intent of the SR 54 West Overlay District is to offer existing tracts of five
+/- acres the option to convert to office uses. Outside of the commercial designation at Tyrone Road
and the commercial and office-institutional designation at Sumner Road (south), these parcels would
be considered for the Office-Institutional Zoning District. Conditions should be placed on property
at the time of rezoning to address unique situations such _as a lot adjacent to a residential
subdivision where berms and fences could be required, as well as, an increase in the buffer.






Page 3
June 5, 2008
PC Public Hearing

In certain situations a change from a residential zoning to the Office-Institutional Zoning District
should not be given consideration due to the impact on abutting residential property in platted and
recorded subdivisions. These situations include, but are not limited to the following:

1. Parcels platted and recorded in a residential subdivision where the residential
subdivision is oriented to and has access to SR54 from one or more internal
streets.

2. Anylotthatis less than five (5) acres and is surrounded on side and rear lot lines
by a platted and recorded residential subdivision or subdivisions. Parcels of at
least five (5) acres could be considered, in that additional setbacks and buffers
could be required as a condition of zoning, while leaving adequate area for

development,

Other Transportation Corridors: Section 7-6 Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone of the Fayette
County Zoning Ordinance establishes Overlay Zones on state highways that traverse Fayette County.
Regardless of the underlying zoning, any new nonresidential development along these corridors must
meet the requirements of the particular Overlay Zone. The Zoning Ordinance establishes Overlay
Zones on SR 54 West and SR 74 South, SR 85 North, and a General State Route Overlay Zone on all
other state routes.

Chairman Powell asked if there were any comments from the public. Hearing none, he closed the
floor from public comments. He confirmed that there would be separate votes on both of the
recommendations. He requested that the following statement be made a part of the Minutes:

“Tonight we are being asked to consider a change to the County Comprehensive Plan. This change
affects the landowners on Highway 54,

I respect my fellow Planning Commission member’s thoughts concerning changing platted
subdivisions. Itoo, feel that a land owner who purchases land in our County should not be surprised
by changes that we cause to occur, after the landowner has purchased their property. So, to my
fellow planning commissioners I say, [ support your thoughts on the subject of maintaining the
integrity of previously platted subdivisions.

My problem is we are being asked to change the comprehensive plan in a manner that is inconsistent
in its treatment of the land owners we are here to represent. If approved, we will create a plan that I
feel treats land owners, on the same road, and in some cases within a half mile of each other,
differently. If approved, this treatment will be as inconsistent as the rulings we have previously
made on petitions for rezoning Residential to Office uses within the Highway 54 corridor.





Page 4
June 5, 2008
PC Public Hearing

In the past, land owners have petitioned the County to rezone residential properties along Highway
54. These petitions were consistent with the intent of the Highway 54 West Overlay District, which
states, “To offer existing tracts ...the option to convert to office uses.” To my knowledge, there have
been three requests to rezone Residential to O-1. The County has not made consistent rulings:
Petition 963-97 was approved. Petition 994-98 was denied; and most recently, Petition 1201-07, was
denied, even though it received the planning staff’s recommendation to approve.

So to correct this inconsistency, we were asked to look at the ordinance. We did, and the majority
agreed that we should change the existing ordinance to accurately reflect the County’s vision for
growth on Highway 54. The majority felt that if a residential lot was in a platted subdivision,
bordering on SR54, it should NOT be allowed to be rezoned O-1. However, the ordinance before us
tonight does not treat all land owners equally on this matter.

As a case in point, compare Lot #18 of the Lakeview Estates subdivision to Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 of the

Ledgewood Subdivision. These parcels are located within 4 mile of each other, on opposite sides of
SR 54.

o Lakeview Estates Lot 18 is a residential lot, in a platted subdivision, bordering on SR54.
Ledgewood Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 are residential lots, in a platted subdivision, bordering on
SR54.

o Lakeview Estates Lot 18 is not accessible from any internal subdivision street. It is solely
accessible via SR54. Ledgewood Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 are not accessible from any internal
subdivision street. They are solely accessible via SR54.

I do not comprehend the logic of making the main road access into a platted subdivision the
distinguishing criteria. The main road access to the subdivision has absolutely no impact on any of
these lots. 1see these residential lots as being identical; however, this proposed ordinance before us
tonight will treat them differently. It will allow the four residential lots, in the Ledgewood
subdivision to be rezoned to O-I and at the same time, prohibits Lot 18 in the Lakeview Estates
subdivision from being rezoned.

I have to ask, if the County wants to change the current comprehensive plan to be more in line with
the way it votes on landowner petitions along the Highway 54 corridor, then why does it create a plan
that continues to allow it? This plan is inconsistent. It will not treat land owners in Fayette County
equally. It is not fair. I cannot support it.”





Page 5
June 5, 2008
PC Public Hearing

Chairman Powell made a motion to amend Recommendation #1 as follows:
1. Parcels platted and recorded in a residential subdivision where the residential

subdivision is—erientedto-and-has—access—+te borders SR54. from—one-eormore

Jim Graw stated that he had previously asked for the paragraph above Recommendation #1 be
amended as follows:

In certain situations a change from a residential zoning to the Office-Institutional Zoning District
showdd will not be given consideration due to the impact on abutting residential property in platted
and recorded subdivisions. These situations include, but are not limited to the following:

Jim Graw seconded the motion.
Tim Thoms asked if the motion included the change in the paragraph above Recommendation #1.

Chairman Powell amended his motion to also include the change in the paragraph above
Recommendation #1 and also the change to Recommendation #1 as follows:

In certain situations a change from a residential zoning to the Office-Institutional Zoning District
sheowld will not be given consideration due to the impact on abutting residential property in platted
and recorded subdivisions. These situations include, but are not limited to the following:

1. Parcels platted and recorded in a residential subdivision where the residential
subdivision is-oriented to—and-has-acecess—to borders SR54. from—eone—orinore

Jim Graw seconded the amended motion.

Al Gilbert stated that S.R. 54 West has the strictest regulations of any area in the County. He said
that Staff is trying to find a way to allow some development. He commented that he could see
similarities and differences in the lots on S.R. 54 West. He remarked that this has not been an easy
process.

Chairman Powell remarked that the Staff’s recommendation does not achieve consistency while the
P.C.’s recommendation does achieve consistency.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Powell called for the vote. The motion passed 4-1 with Al
Gilbert voting in opposition.





Page 6

June 5, 2008

PC Public Hearing

Chairman Powell read Recommendation #2 to the audience.

Al Gilbert said that the strict overlay requirements should handle these type situations.

Chairman Powell concurred.

Tim Thoms commented that, as proposed, it would predispose a recommendation for denial to a lot
that meets the verbiage when there may be circumstances that it should be permitted even though the

lot may be less than five (5) acres. He added that the overlay requirements will apply.

Tim Thoms made a motion to delete #2. in its entirety as follows:

Chairman Powell seconded the motion. He said that a rezoning decision from residential to
nonresidential would be based on the Staff Analysis, Land Use Plan, the proximity of the property to
residential, and the S.R. 54 West Overlay District. The motion unanimously passed 5-0.





		Planning and Zoning- Comprehe... West Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Comprehensive Plan S.R 54 West Backup




Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Planning & Zoning/Community Dev. Department Head: ’Peter A. Frisina

Presenter, if needed: ’P. Frisina/Phil Mallon/Bryan Woodie Preferred Meeting Date: ’Wednesday,JuIy 2,2008

Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of recommendations for golf cart usage on County streets as presented by Planning & Zoning, Public Works, and the
Sheriff's Office.

Background/History/Details:

This issue was discussed at the B.O.C. Retreat in November, 2007. Staff has received inquiries about approving County streets which
are not located in a platted/recorded subdivision for golf cart usage. To date, all streets authorized for golf cart use have been
within a platted/recorded subdivision with the exception of Quarters Road within the boundaries of Highgrove S/D and a portion of
Huiet Drive within the boundaries of WaterLace S/D. Staff has been researching this issue and is now ready to present their findings,
including an addition to the Fayette County Code, Chapter 10. Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article lll. Motorized Carts.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Discussion and direction from the Board.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

N/A

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |November, 2007 (BOC Retreat)

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date |Wednesday, July 2, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New

Presentation Hearing ® Business C Business ( Consent ( Report ( Other





e,

Where Quatity T A4 Lifestyte
Tia: Board of Commissioners
From: Pete Frisina, Phil Mallon, Bryan Woodie
Date: June 17, 2008
Subject: Demand for Golf Cart Usage in Unincorporated Fayette County.

The demand for golf cart usage in unincorporated Fayette County is growing among the
public. Since Peachtree City was developed on the concept of golf cart accessibility,
there has been a demand demonstrated for subdivisions in close proximity to Peachtree
City wanting access into Peachtree City via a golf cart. Woodcreek and Jefferson Creek
Subdivisions access Peachtree City through the Preserves Subdivision (Peachtree City)
located on Redwine Road. Timber Lake Subdivision has accesses to Peachtree City
through their recreation area. High Grove Subdivision also accesses Peachtree City
through Timber Lake Subdivision with a path along Redwine Road connecting High
Grove to Timber Lake.

The County allows golf cart use on roads that have been authorized by the Board of
Commissioners. This regulation (Ordinance 95-10) was adopted on April 27, 1995. The
majority of roads authorized for golf cart use are interior subdivision streets. The only
exceptions have been portions of existing County Roads that are fully within the
boundaries of a subdivision. These roads include Quarters Road within the boundaries of
Highgrove Subdivision and Huiet Drive within the boundaries of Waterlace Subdivision.

We are now getting inquiries for golf cart use on roads which are not within a
subdivision. For example, residents of The Landings Subdivision are requesting that a
portion of Sumner Road be approved for golf cart use. Sumner Road runs from
unincorporated Fayette County into Peachtree City. It is legal to use a golf cart on the
Peachtree City portion of Sumner Road. Peachiree City allows golf carts on streets with
a speed limit of 35 miles per hour or less unless there is a designated golf cart path in
close proximity that can be used instead of aroad. Accordingto Mr. ™"~ ™ of The
Landings, arrangements were made for residents of the subdivision in 2001 to access
Sumner Road through two lots in the subdivision and the Coweta-Fayette EMC property
located at the intersection of SR 54 and Summner Road. In the summer of 2006, the
County placed signs at the entrance of subdivisions approved for golf cart use stating that
golf carts were not allowed beyond that point. The residents of The Landings
Subdivision stopped accessing Sumner Road with golf carts at that time.





BOC Memo — Golf Carts
June 17, 2008
Page 2

Staff (Planning and Zoning, Public Works, and Sheriff’s Office) has researched the issue
of allowing golf cart use on streets outside of a subdivision and, of course, the major
issue is safety. Although the use of a multi-use path is always preferred and should be
provided wherever feasible, staff believes the risk associated with golf carts on public
roads can be minimized if the following minimum conditions are met:
e (olf cart usage should be limited to Local streets, as indicated on the Fayette
County Thoroughfare Plan;
o The posted speed limit should be 35 mph or less;
e The 85" percentile speed should not exceed the posted speed limit by more than
16 mph, as determined by studies performed by the Sheriff’s Office;
e The minimum grade of the road should not exceed seven percent; and,

o The minimum sight distance at any location along the road should meet or exceed
200 feet.

In addition to verifying these conditions are met, Staff would also consider any other
existing conditions particular to the street in the recommendation. Following a request by
property owners, Staff would prepare a report and recommendation to the Board of
Commissioners.

The suggested change to the Fayette County Code is as follows:

Fayette County Code
Chapter 10, Article I1I, Section 10 (Motorized Carts)

Sec. 10-48. Street Authorization

(a) The Board of Commissioners may authorize public streets for the use of motorized
carts.  Citizens may request the authorization of public streets in the
unincorporated County. The request for the authorization of certain public
streets, especially those public streets outside of the boundaries of a final platted
subdivision, shall consider issues including, but not limited to, the street
classification, posted speed limit, speed characteristics of the street as determined
by studies performed by the Sheriff’s Office, minimum grade of the road,
minimum visibility distance, or any other existing conditions particular to the
street.  The Board of Commissioners can consider measures on the street
including the reduction of the posted speed limit, additional signage/markings,
and traffic calming devices to improve safety.

In the situation where conditions change over time on a street authorized for golf cart use
making it too dangerous, the County would be faced with two options. The first option
would be to remove the street form the authorized list discontinuing golf cart use. The
second option would be to reduce the posted speed limited and/or implement additional
signage/ markings and traffic calming devices to improve safety.





STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF FAYETTE

ORDINANCE

NO. 95- 10

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE
COUNTY; TO PROVIDE FOR AUTHORIZATION FOR MOTORIZED CARTS TO BE |
OPERATED UPON RECREATION PATHS AND AUTHORIZED STREETS; TO PROVIDE,
FOR FINDINGS; TO PROVIDE FOR DEFINITIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR MINIMUM i
OPERATING REGULATIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR PROHIBITED USES; TO PROVIDE%
FOR PENALTIES; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE; |
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE
COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE
SAME THAT CHAPTER 10 OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE BE AMENDED BY |
ADDING A NEW ARTICLE TO BE KNOWN AS ARTICLE IIT WHICH SHALL
GOVERN THE USE OF MOTORIZED CARTS ON RECREATION PATHS AND é

AUTHORIZED STREETS AND TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE III. MOTORIZED CARTS.

Section 10-41. Findings:; definition.

(a) The Board of Commissioners finds that certain public
streets located within the unincorporated County are designed and
constructed so as to safely permit the use thereof by regular
vehicular traffic and also the driving thereon of motorized

carts. The Board of Commissioners further finds that recreation





i
1
¢
¥
!
]
i
3
H
|
{
{
!

paths are designed and constructed so as to safely permit travel
thereon by motorized carts.

(b) "Authorized streets'" means all such streets which have
been authorized for motorized cart travel and are on file with
the Planning and Zoning Department. The list of authorized

streets is subject to amendment from time to time by the Board of

Commissioners.
(c) '"County'" means Fayette County, Georgia.
(d) '"Motorized cart" means all electric and gasoline-

powered pleasure carts which are commonly called golf carts.
Within this article, the terms "motorized cart', 'golf cart", andf
"cart" shall have the same meanings; these are the only carts

authorized for use under under this article.

Section 10-42. Operation of gasoline-powered carts.

(a) Every cart shall at all times be equipped with an
exhaust system -in good working order and in constant operation,
meeting the following specifications:

(1) The exhaust system shall include the piping
leading from the flange of the exhaust manifold to, and
including, the muffler(s) and exhaust pipe(s).

(2) The exhaust system and its elements shall be
securely fastened.

(3) The engine of every cart shall be so equipped,
adjusted and tuned, as to prevent the escape of excessive

smoke or fumes.





(b) It shall be unlawful for the owner of any cart to
operate, or permit the operation of, such cart on which any
device controlling or abating atmospheric emissions, which is
placed on a cart by the manufacturer, has been altered, rendered

unserviceable, or removed.

Section 10-43. Operating requlations.

(a) Any person who possesses a valid motor vehicle driver's;
license and is at least sixteen (16) years of age may operate a
motorized cart on the recreation paths and authorized streets.

(b) Any person who possesses a valid motor vehicle
learner's permit and is at least fifteen (15) years of age may
operate a motorized cart on the recreation paths and authorized
streets, so long as such person is accompanied in the front seat
by a person who possesses a valid motor vehicle driver's license
and is at least eighteen (18) years of age.

(c) No person less than fifteen (15) years of age shall be
permitted to operate a motorized cart on the recreation paths and
authorized streets under any circumstances.

(d) All operators of motorized carts shall abide by all
traffic reqgulations applicable to vehicular traffic when using
the recreation paths and authorized streets. Recreation paths
must be used in preference to parallel authorized streets,

(e) Motorized carts shall not be operated on sidewalks at

any time.





(f) Motorized carts may be operated over authorized streets
or paths only during daylight hours, unless such motorized carts
are equipped with functional headlights and taillights.

(g) It shall be unlawful for the owner of any motorized
cart to operate, or permit the operation of, such cart over the
recreation paths or authorized streets in violation of this

article.

Section 10-44. Recreation path users-prohibited uses.

Recreation paths shall not be used by:

(a) Automobiles and trucks (except authorized maintenance
vehicles);

(b) Motorcycles;

(c) Street and trail motorized bikes or vehicles,
including, but not limited to, all-terrain vehicles, commonly
known as ATVs;

(d) Minibikes and mopeds;

(e) Horses; and

(f) Go-carts.

Section 10-45. Hazardous activities and special rules.

No individual or group shall engage in hazardous activities on
the recreation paths or authorized streets. Such hazardous
activities include, but are not limited to, the following:

(a) Racing of any kind, except for special events approved

by the County;





(b) Blocking of public access, except for special events
approved by the County;

(c) Pedestrians, skaters, and permitted vehicles shall not
loiter or park on recreation path bridges or in underpasses;

(d) Pedestrians should be given due consideration and
reasonable right-of-way by other users of the recreation paths to
ensure safe passage;

(e) An audible warning shall be given by operators of
motorized carts and other users of the recreation paths, such as
bicyclists and skaters, when approaching pedestrians from the
rear;

(f) All laws and ordinances relative to alcohol and the use
thereof, including open container laws, apply to the recreation

paths.

Section 10-46. Liability.
Each person using the recreation paths is liable for his or her

own actions.

Section 10-47. Penalties.
Any person who violates the terms of this article shall be

punished as provided in Section 1-8 of the Fayette County Code.

i





}
o
B!
|3
il
I
i
i
| £
]
A
L
i

SO ENACTED this _ 27thday of April , 1995.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
FAYETTE COUNTY

A
By:

: 7
RICKZ?RTCE, Chairman

ATTEST:

g -7

] ’ /; S i
in%&rmcgat/ \7‘:{/} 7 41/2;/ :

LINDA RIZZOTTO,;YBﬁ%giuty Clerk





STREETS AUTHORIZED FOR MOTORIZED CART USE - PAGE 1 OF 4

SUBDIVISION

STREETS

DATE APPROVED

Jefferson Woods

Glenwood Chase

05/17/95

Glenfare Trace

Jefferson Woods Drive

Mockingbird Trail

Monarch Drive

West Creek Court

Woodcreek

Cadencia Court

05/17/95

Cheshire Chase

Qak Shadow

Streamview Circle

Strickland Court

Stonehaven Drive

Wellborn Chase

Weston Way

Woodcreek Lane

New Haven

Newhaven Drive

08/04/04

Conservatory Point

Southgate Drive

Timberlake — The Shores

Iverness Shores Drive

08/04/04

Tall Timbers Court

Briarmeadow Court

Woodberry Place

Timberlake — Wood’s
Edge

Brown’s Crossing Drive

08/04/04

Woodmere Lane

Spring Mist Drive

Timberlake — Creekview

Woodleigh Drive

08/04/04

Longmead Drive

Stonebriar Lane

The Chimneys

Lodge Trail

08/04/04

Hearthstone Lane

Covey Crossing

Grouse Point

MillPond Manor

Manor Drive

08/04/04

Gristmill Drive

Driftwood Trail

Millstone Drive

Edinburgh Court

Watergate Cove

Annelise Park

Annelise Park Drive

12/15/05

Kirby Lane

Vinings Walk






|

STREETS AUTHORIZED FOR MOTORIZED CART USE - PAGE 2 OF 4

SUBDIVISION

STREETS

DATE APPROVED

Horsemen’s Run

Horsemens Run

03/01/06

Housman Drive

Denton Circle

Compton Drive

Hancock Court

Summerfield Place

Reynolds Place

Osborne Court

Addison Drive

Fitzgerald Lane

Platinum Ridge

Diamond Pointe

07/13/06

Platinum Ridge Point

Autumn Lake Estates

Village Lake Court

07/13/06

Autumn Lake Court

Oakley Estates

Riveroak Drive

07/13/06

Vickery Lane

Vickery Lane

08/10/06

Kyle Court

Waters Way

Tranquil Court

Highgrove

Ashborough Park

09/06/06

Burbury Close

Brisbane Court

Colony Point

Cottonmill Court

Coventry Court

Dresden Place

Glen Grove

Highgrove Drive

Meeting House Road

Old Ivy

0Old Valley Point

Pleasant Hill

St. Charles Place

Suffolk Place

Tarragon Drive

Trotters Ridge

Whitegate Drive

Paved portion of Quarters
Road from the intersection
of Redwine Road to the
west corner of Lots 63C and
70C






STREETS AUTHORIZED FOR MOTORIZED CART USE - PAGE 3 OF 4

SUBDIVISION

STREETS

DATE APPROVED

Brechin Park

Brechin Drive

09/28/06

Bontura Drive

Bramlet Court

Fenhurst Point

Densmorr Ridge

The Landings/Fayette
Village, Unit One

Twin Branch Walk

10/26/06

Old Mill Crossing

Old Mill Point

Old Plantation Way

Old Magnolia Lane

Golden Glen Way

Oak Ridge Drive

Cedar Lane

Aspen Way

Rebecca Lakes

Youngs Circle

11/01/06

McElwaney Way

Rebecca Court

Whippoorwill Way

Moonview Place

Jaysee Court

WaterLace

Silver Lake Way

12/14/06

Bluewater Point

Row boat Court

Discovery Lake Drive

Crescent Creek Court

Marsh Landing

Reflections Point

Summer Lake Court

Lapis Lake Point

Dockside Drive

Covebreeze Court

Topsail Court

Watercolor Drive

Quiet View Court

Windsail Way

Freshwater Court

WaterLace Way

Mistwater Close

Cattail Court

Flyfisher Lane

Blue Point Drive






STREETS AUTHORIZED FOR MOTORIZED CART USE - PAGE 4 OF 4

SUBDIVISION

STREETS

DATE APPROVED

Canoe Cove

Little Cove Court

Butterfly Pointe

Huiet Drive

(within the subdivision —
Lot 192 and Lot 316 south
side and Lot 319 west side)

Mountbrook

Nesmith Court

04/26/07

Sheridan Court

Wilcox Court

Mountain’s Edge

Swain’s Drive

Updated 04/27/07






		Planning and Zoning- Golf Cart Usage Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Golf Cart Usage Backup







